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(@) (@)
2019 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2019 12 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 29 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2020 12 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 30 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
2021 12 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,545,493,167
(1) 120,000,000 ( )
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)
)
V61110
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(¢))
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10) 18
@D 33| 305,087,338 9.90
33
@ 305,087,338 9.90
8 I
( N 291,207,411 9.45
8 ' 291,207,411 9.45
22 207, :
(O)
2,809,744,415 91.18
(€))
( SIICHIC )
SIICHIC
( SIICHCL ) 100 SFO
15 SIICHCL  SIICHIC
(2) SIICHCL ( SIHC
) 100 SIHC SIICHCL SFO 15
3) D) ( GBL )
( ) 100 GBL SFO 15
) ( ) ( CTLIHK
) (
CTIHCL ) 100 CTIHCL CTLIHK SFO 15
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2021 12 31 2021
/
2021
(2021 12 31 ) N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
(2021 12 31 ) N/A N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
P
(SBS JP)
(Companies Registry of Hong Kong) (Guide on Directors® Duties) /
( ) (Guide for

Independent Non-executive Directors)
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13.51(2)
@
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;9 )(1962 13 )
2021 12 31
2022
« ) ( )
EMBA
2001 10 2011 2011
2017
(Shenzhen International Holdings Limited)( 152)

2017 2020 2012

( 548) ( 600548)
(Shenzhen Expressway Corporation Limited)(
(Shenzhen Expressway Company Limited))

2015
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2002 11
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(
(42 )(1980 20 )
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(Shenzhen Expressway Corporation Limited)(
(Shenzhen Expressway Company Limited))(
( 600548)
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(Taiping Financial
Tower projects) 2020
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( A000002)
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(P)(47 )(1974 11 10 )
2011 2015
26 2018 11 2022
( BEA )
2004 2009 BEA
2009 BEA 2014 2019

(Towngas Smart Energy Company Limited)( (Towngas
China Company Limited)) (China Overseas
Land & Investment Limited) (Guangdong Investment Limited)

(Chief Executive®s Council of Advisers on Innovation & Strategic Development of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region) (Hong Kong
Trade Development Council) (Financial Services Development Council)

(Asian Financial Cooperation Association)

(Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
(Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales)
(Hong Kong Academy of Finance) (Treasury Markets

Association) MBA
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(52 ) (1970 9 )
2018 11
2022
29
1992 2006 EMBA
(Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
(Association of Chartered Certified Accountants)
(American Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
(Hopson Development Holdings Limited)(
754) (Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited)( 1047)
( ) (Termbray Industries
International (Holdings) Limited)( 93)
AMVIG (AWIG Holdings Limited)(
( 2300) 2021 20 )
2021 19
(SBS, JP)(71 )(1950 12 )
2018 11 2022
(Tony Kan & Co., Solicitors & Notaries) 1982

(Supreme Court of Hong Kong)
(Supreme Court of England and Wales)
(Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory)
(Supreme Court of the Republic of Singapore)

(Guangdong Committee) 1985 2011
(Sha Tin District Council) 1999 (Regional
Council) 1997
1988 (Heung Yee Kuk)
( (Town Planning Board) (Housing Authority) (Building
Committee) ) (Election Committee)
(Man Wah Holdings Limited)( 1999) 2013
2016 29 (Nameson Holdings Limited)(
1982) 2016 12
2017 12 29 DBG
(DBG Technology Co., Ltd.)( 300735)
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( )
(Midland Holdings Limited)( ( 1200) )
1994 10 2004
2014 2016 10
2016 10 2019 10 1C&l (Midland
1C&!1 Limited)( ( 459) )
2019 18 2019 16
(Kimou Environmental Holding Limited)(
6805)
(1 )(970 12 11 )
2022
( 1308) SITC (SITC
International Holdings Company Limited)( SITC SITC
)
2008 2021 SITC 2008 2013 SITC
2017 SITC
2018 12
(China Beststudy Education
Group)( 3978)
1991 1997
2004 2006
2011 2019
(The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries)( (The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute))

(Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators)(

(The Chartered Governance Institute))

2021 12 31 SFO 352

(SFO 15 )
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2016 2017 2018 30 2018 12 31 2019 12
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
( )
17,639,000 20,226,000 15,359,000 10,193,000 2,863,000
8,037,000 8,967,000
2018 30 2018 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
( 485 ) MPF
30,000
2021 12 31
MPF 2,660,000

(2020 12 31 1,527,000 )
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(GIED)) (GEED)) (D)) (D))
1,555(28,083) 808(14,592) 1,485(26,819) 182(3,287)
479(8,651) 0(0) 450(8,127) 0(0)
2,034(36,734) 808(14,592) 1,935(34,946) 182(3,287)
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6
1
38 59
131
2. 2021 12 31
40 321 35
32 12
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€))
2021 12 31

2020 2021
64,178 1,159 84,950 1,534

13,378 242 19,627 355

15 545,181 9,846 - -
(575) (10) (1,034) (19)

(35,199) (636) (41,124) (743)

(17,266) (312) (20,651) (373)

295,090 5,329 656,758 11,861

864,787 15,618 698,526 12,615

(171,004) (3,089) (80, 440) (1,453)

10 693,783 12,529 618,086 11,162
7,560 137 (9,810) am

64,359 1,162 46,870 847

765,702 13,828 655,146 11,832

688,661 12,437 609,208 11,002

5,122 92 8,878 160

693,783 12,529 618,086 11,162

760,580 13,736 646,268 11,672

5,122 92 8,878 160

765,702 13,828 655,146 11,832

12 0.2235 4.04 0.1977 3.57
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2021 12 31

2020 2021
15 4,673,688 84,407 4,971,183 89,780
16 31,000 560 20,100 363
17 2,111 38 1,768 32
18 - - 4,999 90
19 322,792 5,830 - -
5,029,591 90,835 4,998,050 90,265
545 10 735 13
1,208 22 5,621 102
19 27,041 488 263,636 4,761
20 801,503 14,475 351,381 6,346
21 240,000 4,334 - -
21 519,042 9,374 1,552,319 28,035
1,589,339 28,703 2,173,692 39,257
6,618,930 119,538 7,171,742 129,522
22 270,603 4,887 270,603 4,887
4,707,513 85,018 4,785,775 86,432
4,978,116 89,905 5,056,378 91,319
23,586 426 22,107 399
5,001,702 90,331 5,078,485 91,718
24 - - 3,335 60
25 754,002 13,617 1,053,922 19,034
26 76,025 1,373 130,746 2,361
830,027 14,990 1,188,003 21,455
10,255 185 10,857 196
24 - - 1,674 30
25 324,347 5,858 882,353 15,936
306,030 5,527 - -
146,569 2,647 10,370 187
787,201 14,217 905,254 16,349
1,617,228 29,207 2,093,257 37,804
6,618,930 119,538 7,171,742 129,522
519,042 9,374 1,552,319 28,035

* *

121/262



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

ooooodd
©))
2021 12 31
( )
2020 270,603 2,337,689 109,164 15,623 (362,453) 2,475,432 4,846,058 24,020 4,870,078
- - - 7,560 - - 7,560 - 7,560
- - - - 64,359 - 64,359 - 64,359
— — — — — 688,661 688,661 5,122 693,783
- - - 7,560 64,359 688,661 760,580 5,122 765,702
- - (574) - - 574 - - -
13 - - - - - (628,522)  (628,522) - (628,522)
_ - - - - — = (5,556) (5,556)
2020 12 31 270,603 2,337,689 108,590 23,183 (298,094) 2,536,145 4,978,116 23,586 5,001,702
- - - (9,810) - - (9,810) - (9,810)
- - - - 46,870 - 46,870 - 46,870
— — - — — 609,208 609,208 8,878 618,086
- - - (9,810) 46,870 609,208 646,268 8,878 655,146
- - 500 - - (500) - - -
13 - - - - - (568,006)  (568,006) - (568,006)
— — — — - — — (10,357) (10,357)
2021 12 31 270,603 2,337,689 109,090 13,373 (251,224) 2,576,847 5,056,378 22,107 5,078,485
( )
2020 4,887 42,219 1,971 282 (6,546) 44,707 87,520 434 87,954
- - - 137 - - 137 - 137
- - - - 1,162 - 1,162 - 1,162
— — — — — 12,437 12,437 92 12,529
- - - 137 1,162 12,437 13,736 92 13,828
- - (10) - - 10 - - -
13 - - - - - (11,351) (11,351) - (11,351)
- - - - — - — (100) (100)
2020 12 31 4,887 42,219 1,961 419 (5,384) 45,803 89,905 426 90,331
- - - @ - - @ - @
— - - - 847 - 847 - 847
- - - - - 11,002 11,002 160 11,162
- - - 177) 847 11,002 11,672 160 11,832
- - 9 - - ©) - - -
13 - - - - - (10,258) (10,258) - (10,258)
- - - — - - - (187) (187)
2021 12 31 4,887 42,219 1,970 242 (4,537) 46,538 91,319 399 91,718
2009 30
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)
2021 12 31

2020 2021
864,787 15,618 698,526 12,615
(1,100) (20) (604) 1)
(58,476) (1,056) (75,310) (1,360)
(1,503) @7 (6,947) (125)
15,791 285 20,566 371
(545,181) (9,846) - -
- - (12,056) (218)
(13,378) (242) (7.,571) (137)
575 11 887 16
- - 147 3
(295,090) (5,329) (656,758) (11,861)
(33,575) (606) (39,120) (707)
(225) ) (4,518) (81)
275 5 (190) ®)
(13,903) (251) 12,407 224
(47,428) (856) (31,421) (567)
(3,468) (63) (157,410) (2,843)
- - 5,783 104
(50,896) (919) (183,048) (3,306)
- - 1,495,000 27,000
494,707 8,935 777,048 14,034
- - 240,000 4,334
- - 172,000 3,106
8,025 145 110,693 1,999
(800, 000) (14,448)  (1,045,000) (18,873)
(558, 750) (10,091) (526,000) (9,499)
(1,140) 1) (544) (10)
1,090,432 19,693 - -
(240,000) (4,334) - -
(12,717) (230) - -
(19,443) (351) 1,223,197 22,001
3,190,168 57,614 2,465,686 44,530
(2,318,054) (41,864)  (1,575,163) (28,447)
(15,575) (281) (20,239) (366)
- - 137) @
- - (16) ©
(317,710) (5,738) (868,522) (15,686)
(5,556) (100) (10,357) (187)
533,273 9,631 (8.,748) (158)
462,934 8,361 1,031,401 18,627
49,785 899 519,042 9,374
6,323 114 1,876 34
519,042 9,374 1,552,319 28,035
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1.
2021 12 31
SIHICHIC
SIHC
SHICHIC
2022 11
SIHC SIHC
29 15
2. IFRS
IFRS
1ASB IFRS
IFRS 2021
IFRS 16 COVID-19
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
IFRS IFRS 16

IFRS
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IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS

IFRS

2021
1,936,275,000

2021 12 31

28

IFRS IFRS

IFRS

IFRS 17
IFRS

IFRS 10 IAS 28

IFRS 16

IAS

1AS IFRS
I1AS

IAS 12

IAS 16

IAS 37

IFRS

2021

N

2022

w

2023

IAS

IFRS

IFRS 16

IFRS

2021 30
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IAS
12

() 12

()

IAS 32
2021 12 31 1,053,922,000
12 2021 12 31
2021 12 31

3.
3.1

IASB IFRS
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FVTPL
FVTOCI FVTOCI
FVTPL
FVTPL
IFRS
ECL
ECL
ECL
ECL 12 ECL ECL 12
12 ECL

ECL
ECL
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ECL
ECL

ECL
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ECL

ECL

ECL

FVTOCI
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IFRS

IFRS
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oOoOooodn
15
2021 12 31 4,971,183,000 2020 4,673,688,000
2021 12 31 656,758,000 2020
295,090,000
639,763,000 2020 625,596,000
2020 97,685,000

2020

66,835,000
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4,971,183,000 2020 4,673,688,000

2021 12 31 656,758,000 2020

295,090,000

276,056,000 2020 256,694,000
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2020

EBITDA

1,040,756 859,495 (449,886) (188,433) 221,176
531,899 418,468 (243,289) (140, 305) 34,874

1,572,655 1,277,963 (693,175) (328,738) 256,050

- (554) - (41,482) (42,036)

1,572,655 1,277,409 (693,175) (370,220) 214,014

8,939
1,503

49,537
545,181
4,199
(35,774)
(17,266)
(149,683)

73,133

693,783
(5,122)

688,661

2021

EBITDA

1,289,560 1,193,530 (468,721) (258,666) 466,143
665,803 560,385 (237,528) (159,973) 162,884

1,955,363 1,753,915 (706,249) (418,639) 629,027

18,632 (5,329) (90) (24,706) (30,125)

1,973,995 1,748,586 (706,339) (443,345) 598,902

36,325
6,947

38,985
14,749
(42,158)
(20,651)
(40,303)

25,290

618,086
(8,878)

609,208

17,719,000 2020 59,755,000 7,571,000 2020 13,378,000
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oOoOooodn
/
CODM

2020 2021

214,014 598,902

59,755 17,719

21,321 40,137

295,090 656,758
( )
2020 8,979 2,186 114 11,279 (11,279) 59,979 59,979
2021 10,237 1,496 564 12,297 (12,297) 82,257 82,257

FVTOCI
1,044,000 2020 1,782,000

CODM
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oOoOooodn

2021

FVTOCI

36,325
38,985
6,947
604
2,089

84,950

2020 12 31
1,027,000

COVID-19

1,027,000

2021

7,571
12,056

19,627

2021

15

752,059
(95,301)

(59, 280)

59,280

656,758

2021

EIT

EIT
26

30,412
(5,783)
55,811

80,440
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oOoOooodn

2021 12 31 EIT
9,141,000 2020 26,340,000
2020 2021
864,787 698,526
25

2020 25 216,197 174,632
(469) (95)
(5,532) 9,174)

13,260 14,314
(73,773) (164,189)

21,321 64,952

171,004 80,440

10.

2020 2021

1,668 1,946

11 8,037 8,967

17,530 18,393

25,567 27,360

575 887

- 147

1,791 2,405

17,266 20,635

- 16

17,266 20,651
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Ogoooood
11.
2020
( )
2020 2021
" a - - - - - - - - - -
179 1,010 886 255 2,330 166 999 1,154 391 2,710
179 853 722 233 1,987 166 875 940 345 2,326
179 858 722 233 1,992 166 873 941 345 2,325
Tp - . _ _ _ - _ _ - _
313 - - - 313 291 - - - 201
c 195 - - - 195 - - - - -
d 118 - - - 118 201 - - - 291
376 - - - 376 350 - - - 350
376 - - - 376 350 - - - 350
350 - - - 350 324 - - - 324
2,265 2,721 2,330 721 8,037 2,104 2,747 3,035 1,081 8,967
*
(@) 2021 12 31
*
() 2021 12 31
*
© 2020 12
*
@ 2020 12
*
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oOoOooodn

2020
2020
2020 2021
2,265 2,084
274 281
32 30
2,571 2,395
2020 2021
1,000,001 1,500,000 2 2
2020 2021 12 31
12.
2020 2021
688,661 609,208
2020 2021
3,081,690,283 3,081,690,283
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ooooOoog
13.
2020 2021
2020 12 31
0.091 10.936835 2020
2019 12 31
0.101 11.320989 320,807 281,511
2020 12 31
0.10 11.787600 307,715
2021 12 31
0.093 11.147631 286,495
628,522 568,006
2020 2021
2021 12 31
0.1045 12.880879 2020
2020 12 31
0.091 10.936835 280,434 322,037
2021 12 31 0.1045 12.880879
14.
MPF
30,000
12
2021 12 31 2021 12 31
MPF 2,660,000 2020

1,527,000
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OooooOodd
15.
2020 2021
2,022,289 2,476,789
2,520,218 2,520,218
1,473,604 1,411,900
(13,044) (13,044)
(539,679) (598,959)
(1,758,090) (1,853,391)
3,705,298 3,943,513
2,449,500 2,449,500
(2,020,789) (2,020,789)
539,679 598,959
968,390 1,027,670
4,673,688 4,971,183
2020 2021 12 31

2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
50 50

( (
4,899,000,0004,899,000,000 50 50 50 50

( (
10,000,000 3,040,000,000 15 15 15 15

( (
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10 48

2,351,000,000
25

1,960,000,000
25

2020 2021
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10 45

2008 30

1,680,000,000
294,000,000

6,715,000,000
1,175,500,000

5,600,000,000
980,000,000

12 31

2003

152/262

1997

702,000,000

35
17 30
35
2010
35
2013

50

oOoOooodn

10 50

471,000,000

588,000,000

25

25

4,899,000,000
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2020

2020 12
12 31

2020
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oOoOooodn
10
22.5
15
545,181,000 2020 12 31
1,090,432,000
2020 17 532,534,000
12,717,000
22.5
31 10,000,000 2021
10,000,000 3,040,000,000
454,500,000
2021 12 31 15

IFRS
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Ooooooog
2020 2021 12 31
( )
2020 2021
501,494 360,173 53 457,252 325,139 1,007
6,002,325 11,005,698 5,462,841 10,577,563
2,170 581
65,769 132,433
6,503,819 11,365,871 65,822 5,922,263 10,902,702 134,021
990,006 185,506 34,144 556,446 169,817 221,657
4,343,205 5,441,125
90,574 42,965 110,489 201,959 30,034 117,885
1,080,580 228,471 4,487,838 758,405 199,851 5,780,667
(453,555)  (130,074) (485,418)  (140,121)
- (2,967,969) (4,917,121) (2,775,512) (4,072,784)  (47,508)
(1,936,779) (2,055,340)
(2,419,765)
(330,463)  (16,134) (324,050)  (12,737)
(1,024)
(139,839)  (339,533) (3,979) (98,924)  (332,404)
(3,891,826) (7,339,641) (2,423,744) (3,684,928) (6,613,386)  (47,508)
- (688,209)  (84,000) (252,714)  (213,541)
- (3,149) (6,328) (2,026) (5,206)
(180,273) (1,757,573)
(2,062,000)
(1,067,475)
(1,186) (596)
(648,299)  (370,819)  (75,083) (621,685)  (391,769)  (399,808)
(1,339,657)  (461,147) (2,317,356) (877,611)  (610,516) (3,225,452)
( ) 2,352,916 3,793,554  (187,440) 2,118,129 3,878,651 2,641,728
45% 50% 15% 45% 50% 15%
( 1,058,812 1,896,777 (28,116) 2,927,473 953,158 1,939,326 396,260 3,288,744
(14,308)  (14,306)
(13,044) (13,044)  (13,044) (13,044)
625 625 986 986
968,390 968,390 1,027,670 1,027,670
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oOoOooodn

( )
2020 2021
« ) 1,046,393 2,865,167 (42,422) 3,869,138 941,100 2,966,996 396,260
727,454 34,674 762,128 632,974 33,853
19 42,422 42,422
1,773,847 2,899,841 4,673,688 1,574,074 3,000,849 396,260
27 44 0 22 42 6
(
) 2,312,792 1,063,798 2,865,690 1,331,605
124,215
10,968 7,255 13,720
2,323,760 1,071,053 2,865,690 1,345,325 124,215
(84,996)
(10,968) (7,255) (13,720)
288,532 57,158 5,999 335,899 62,327 5,375
(36,854) (7,806) (31,864)  (10,047)
(438,904)  (209,615) (377,695)  (192,726)
(96,500)  (66,598) (9,948) (87,240)  (70,389)  (80,125)
(794,894)  (485,048) (831,646)  (473,414) (597)
(128,134)  (226,035)  (254,230) (84,254)  (190,899)  (231,369)
« ) (277,164)  (50,824) 65,769 (433,637)  (111,817) 66,664
«C ) 828,874 75,030  (192,410) 1,355,253 344,640  (200,833)
45 50 37.5 /15 45 50 15
(
) 372,993 37,515 (42,036) 368,472 609,864 172,320 (30,125)
19,567 19,567
392,560 37,515 (42,036) 388,039 609,864 172,320 (30,125)
(
) 385,403 109,304 494,707 709,538 66,966
() 3,990,000 179,022,000 2019 11
4,124,000,000 2019 12 2019 12 31
2020 2,643,000
32,611,000 2019 12 31
2020 12 31 19,567,000
() 39,376,000 2020 132,789,000
16.
FVTOCI
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OooooOodd
17.
2020 1,273 5,276 6,549
758 382 1,140
2020 12 31 2,031 5,658 7,689
544 544
(345) (345)
2021 12 31 2,031 5,857 7,888
2020 382 4,621 5,003
356 219 575
2020 12 31 738 4,840 5,578
406 481 887
(345) (345)
2021 12 31 1,144 4,976 6,120
2020 12 31 1,293 818 2,111
2021 12 31 887 881 1,768
18.
2021 12 31
4,999
2021 12 31
147
2020 2021
1,791 2,558
5,146
2020
2021 12 31 5,146,000 5,146,000
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2021 12 31
2,405,000 2020 1,791,000 2021
12 31
19.
2020 12 31
322,792,000 2022
27,041,000 2021
12
2021 12 31
263,636,000 2020 322,792,000
27,041,000
28
20.
2021 12 31 2022 24
2020 2021 13 30 2020 3.81
2020 2021 12
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oOoOooodn
21.
2021 12 31 0.01 3.96 2020
0.01 2.9
2020 12 31 3.95
2020 2021
754,902 1,546,621
4,131 5,698
9
759,042 1,552,319
28
22.
0.1
2020 2020 2021 12 31 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
2020 2020 2021 12 31 3,081,690,283 308,169 270,603
2013 10 22
10
)

158/262



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

oOoOooodn
2007 25
2007 25 15
2022 24
HHI
23.

2020 2021
1,341,358 1,125,484
1,685,291 1,698,236
3,026,649 2,823,720
332 489
915 810
875,412 1,498,851
492,447 644,275
1,369,106 2,144,425
4,395,755 4,968,145
270,603 270,603
2,795,374 2,814,743
3,065,977 3,085,346
2,878 3,227

306,030
1,020,870 1,879,572
1,329,778 1,882,799
4,395,755 4,968,145
492,447 644,275
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OooooOodd
22
2021 12 31
3,185,343,000 2020  3,165,974,000 847,654,000
2020 828,285,000 2,337,689,000 2020 2,337,689,000
( )
2020 2,337,689 (370,600) 1,035,480 3,002,569
. - 421,327 421,327
13 - - (628,522) (628,522)
2020 12 31 2,337,689 (370,600) 828,285 2,795,374
- - 587,375 587,375
13 - - (568,006) (568,006)
2021 12 31 2,337,689 (370,600) 847,654 2,814,743

2009 30

24.

2021

1,674
1,755
1,580
5,009
(1,674)
3,335

3.85 2020
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25.
2020 2021
1,078,349 1,936,275
1,078,349 1,936,275
2020 2021 12 31
2020 2021
1,078,349 1,936,275
2020 2021
324,347 882,353
- 65,360
754,002 988,562
1,078,349 1,936,275
(324,347) (882,353)
754,002 1,053,922
2021 12 31 HIBOR 0.88 HIBOR
2020  HIBOR 0.98 HIBOR
26.
FVTOCI
2020 2,192 78,012 - 464 80,668
- 21,321 - (464) 20,857
840 - - - 840
- (26, 340) - - (26,340)
2020 12 31 3,032 72,993 - - 76,025
- 64,952 - - 64,952
(1,090) - - - (1,090)
- (30,737) 30,737 - -
- (9,141) - - (9,141)
2021 12 31 1,942 98,067 30,737 - 130,746
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25 24
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ooooooo
28.
€Y
2020 2021
1,110,083 1,821,725
FVTOCI 31,000 20,100
FVTPL 801,503 351,381
1,942,586 2,193,206
1,391,071 1,942,327
®)
)
2020 2021 2020 2021
9 _ _ _
4,131 5,698 1,388,508 1,940,612
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2021 12

96,746,000 2020 69,219,000
33,608,000 2020 39,600,000

25 21

21 24

IBOR
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2021 12

100

2021 12

22,523,000

2021 12
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100
31
100 2020
3,840,000 2020 5,593,000
31
100 2020 100
2020 25,500,000
31
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ooooood
2021 12 31 225,000,000
7,051,000
12
ECL
ECL
12
ECL
2020 12 31
12 ECL 349,833
A+ 12 ECL 519,042
AA+ 12 ECL 240,000
2021 12 31
12 ECL 263,636
A+ 12 ECL 1,552,319
12 ECL 225,000
HIBOR 0.88 HIBOR 1.5 2020 HIBOR
0.98 HIBOR
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oOoOooodn
2020 12 31
- 6,692 - 6,692 6,692
- 306,030 - 306,030 306,030
1.23 333,913 774,037 1,107,950 1,078,349
646,635 774,037 1,420,672 1,391,071
2021 12 31
- 6,052 - 6,052 6,052
3.85 1,838 3,461 5,299 5,009
1.41 901,684 1,085,523 1,987,207 1,936,275
- 225,000 - 225,000 -
1,134,574 1,088,984 2,223,558 1,947,336
50
25 HIBOR
IBOR
HONITA HIBOR
HIBOR HIBOR HONTA
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ooooooo
HIBOR HIBOR
2020 2021
FVTOCI
31,000,000 20,100,000 7.78 2020
18.82
(EV/EBITDA)
6.33 2020
7.42
27
2020 30
801,503,000 351,381,000
1.35 4.00
2020 1.35
3.81
241,000
2020 814,000
728,000 2020 1,482,000
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OooooOodd
FVTOCI
2020 22,600 -
- 1,503
7,560 -
- 800,000
840 -
2020 12 31 31,000 801,503
- 6,947
(9,810) -
- 1,045,000
- (1,495,000)
- (7.,069)
(1,090) -
2021 12 31 20,100 351,381
6,947,000 2020 1,503,000

FVTOCI
9,810,000 2020 7,560,000
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0000000
29.
2020 2021 12 31
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
BVI 97.5 97.5 97.5 97.5
" 20,000 20,000
97.5 97.5
97.5 97.5
100 100
100 100
SIH 100 100 100 100
97.5 97.5 97.5 97.5
858,800,0001,473,535,997
SIH
*
30.
2020 2021 12 31
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OooooOodd
31.
2020 280,969 - - 157 281,126
872,114 - (323,266) (15,575) 533,273
- - 634,078 - 634,078
- - - 15,791 15,791
(74,734) - (4,782) (20) (79,536)
2020 12 31 1,078,349 - 306,030 353 1,384,732
- 5,146 - - 5,146
890,523 (153) (878,879) (20,239) (8,748)
- - 578,363 - 578,363
- 16 - 20,550 20,566
(32,597) - (5,514) @7 (38,128)
2021 12 31 1,936,275 5,009 - 647 1,941,931
2,465,686,000 2020 3,190,168,000
1,575,163,000 2020 2,318,054,000
32.
(@) 2021 12 31
5,146,000 5,146,000
(b) 2021 12 31 454,500,000
33.
2021 12 31
38,985,000 2020 49,537,000
11
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oOoOooodn
34.
2021 12 31 3,737,180,000 2020 5,956,394,000
225,000,000
2021 12 31
7,051,000
35.

87 149 2022 25
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Fow e pear coaead 11 Degembaer SO

2020 N
MNOTLES RME OO0 RME OG0
Other income L] 64,178 84,950
Other gain and loss 7 13,374 19,627
Gain on partial disposal of a poinl venture 15 545,181 -
Depreciation (375 (1,034)
Ceneral and administrative expenses 135.199) (41,124}
Finance costs (17.264) {20,651)
Share of results af joint ventures ] 295,050 656,758
Profit before 1ax 64,787 698,526
Income lax expense 9 [171,0044) (80,440
Profit for the year 10 693,783 618,086
Other comprehensive income (expenso)
Mern that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair valui gain {loss) on investment in equity instrument
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
net of tax 7.560 (9,810)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange gain arising on translation of foreign operations 64,359 46,870
Total comprehensivee income for the year 765,702 055,146
Profit for the year attributable to:

Crwners of the Company [ LAY | LG, 208
Mon-contralling inlénests 5122 8,878
691,783 618,086
Total comprehensive income attributalle fo:

Onwners of the Company 7o, 380 6,268
Non-controlling inlenests 5122 BB7H
763,702 035,146
REME conts RME conls

Earnings per share 12
Easic 2235 19.77

Amniial Repory 3031 B
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As ar 31 Docember X021

2020 2027
NOITES RABTNK) RM B QNI
ASSETS
Mon-current Assels
Inferests in joinl ventures 15 4,673 688 4,971,183
Eqquity instrument al fair value through olbser
comprehensive income 16 31,(010 0,100
Propery and cdul pmieal 17 2111 1,768
Right-of-use assot 18 - 4,999
Amaount due from a jeint venture 19 322,792 -
5,029,591 4,998,050
Current Assels
Deposits and prepayments 545 735
Interest and other receivables 1,208 5,621
Amaount due from a joint venture 19 27,00 2b3,.6306
Struciured deposit 20 801,503 351,38
Time deposit with original maturity over three months n 240,000 -
Bank halances and cash 21 519,042 1,554,319
1,589,339 2,073,692
Total Assels 6,618,930 771,742
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Keserves
Share capital 22 270,643 270,603
Share promium and reserves 4,707,513 4,785,775
Equity attributable (o owners of the Company 4.978.116 5,056,378
Non-controlling interests 23,586 207
Total Equity 5,001,702 5,078,485
Mon-current Liabilities
Lease liahility 24 = 3,315
Bank loans 25 754,002 1,053,922
Deferred tax liabilities 6 76,025 130,746
830,027 1,188,003
Current Liabilities
Fayahles and accruals 10,255 10,857
Lease liability 24 1,674
Bank loans 25 324,347 BB2,353
Dividend payables 306,030 -
Tax pavahles 146,569 10,370
JB7.20 05,254
Total Liabilities 1,617,228 2,093,257
Total Equity and Liabilities f, 61 8,930 771,742
Cash and cash equivalents 519,042 1,552,319
Tianliang ZHANG® Ji L=
Ehirector Director

= Fowr difenndineaehinn purpase anly

#8 Shrnrhrn Investment Hihfings Ray Aces Dpvebapaeesd Cosapany s ed

174/262



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bOdoooooooo00o000o0o0o0odoooooo0o00000nodn(ecsss)
Oooooooa

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Fow e r‘qrm‘h:\',rr Degwaribaey JO2 0

Adiribadabile bo owmers of the Conypany

Pecple's

Eepabic
of Chisa

FPRCT)  [mvesiment Na-

Share Share  ufolory  rewaluabion  Jramdaton  Reliined ceninefiing
cigited  premivm e reene feene profits  Satefofadl  debereats Total
RUBG0  RMETO0  AMBTO0  RMEDOO  RAEO0G  AMATOD  RWEDOR  RMETOR  AMBD0D

Mol | lasuary 2030 e AN 169, o 15621 R EE JATIALY 43D M 4870008
Faiuh.rpinm mwveitment in equity

ewtrument a1 i vilee thioegh ofher

comsrhefiie incofe, o6 of b - - - 7560 - - 76N - 1560
Enthunge gan oo tandation ol

boregin openatiaty - - = - b, 558 - I, 55 - 1
Fornifi b B yer - - - - - i ka1 % fihi] a2 bR TR
Total comprebessive income for the vest - - - TE B GEESRI TROSEN 512 NS
Trandes between reene = = and = = 4 - - =
Dewvicderdh recognived o dstribution

dhating ther year {Noge 13 - - - - - [ASEN 2N - (hIB3In
Dvirdendi puaid 1o noeconbrolling islereiss . . - . - - . (3,558 15556
At 11 Deersher 2000 Tl 1337689 188,590 ILI6) WL 151604 LYTEIG 5 30T
Fait walue less on vesten] i equy

imstrumen a1 L valee thiough oher

compsehernive incone, pel o - - - fia il - - Ml - Mam
Enchangs gaonon tansaion of

lore g petalioes - - - - g - &hATH - dhAT
Profit ke e vear = = - - - A 0R Ll (8o ] h18 886
Total comprebessine jexpense; income

e the yea - - - a1 [EN-H ] 4 108 b 20 1,678 435,14k
Trarmden butwioen pessfves - - 00 - - am - -
Dviends recegnised o detrBution

dharing B year |Noke 11} - = = - - GAROOR  SERA0G - [0
Mﬂﬁpﬁbmﬂﬂlr‘m - = = - = = - 10,557 (10,3570
A4 3t 11 Deversher 2301 sl LT R #9890 137 LI LAY SAGRITR LT S0iRAes

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in Renminhbi
{"RMB") (the presentation currency of the Groupl, the equity transactions and accumulated carnings
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (*“HEDT) are translated at the exchange rates at the transaction dates.
Before the change in functional currency of the Company from HKD o BMB during the year ended 30 june
2009, the exchange differences recognised in translation reserve represented the difierence between the
equity transactions and accumulated earnings transiated at the exchange rates at the fransaction dales and
the assets and liabilities translated at the closing rates at the end of each reporting period. Subsequent 1o the
change in functional currency of the Company, the exchange differences recognised in translation reserve
represented ranslation of ils foreign operations,

Annial Reprs 20031 ]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001
20200 2027
RME TN R D
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 864,787 BOR.526
Adjustments for;
Dividend income from equity instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive income 11,1008 (04
Interest income (58,4760 {75,310)
Investment income from structured depaosit (1,303} {6,947
Interest expense 15,791 0,566
Gain on partial disposal of a joint venture (545,181} -
Write back of unrealised loss related to partial disposal of
A joint venture in pre year = {12,056)
Met exchange gain (13.378) (7.571)
Depreciation of property and equipment 575 BaT
Depreciation of right-of-use asset - 147
Share of results of joint ventures {295,090) (656,7 50)
Ciperating cash flows before movements in working capital A3.575) (39,12
Increase ininterest and other receivables {225} (4,518)
Decrease (increase] in deposits and prepayments 275 (190)
(Decrease] increase in payables and accruals 13,903) 12,407
Cash used in operating achvities (47 428) (31,4121)
Income tax paid (3468 (157 410)
Incosmie tax refurd - 5,783
MNET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (50,896 (183,048)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal of structured deposit - 1,495,000
Dividends received (net of PRC withholding tax) 494,707 777048
Withdrawal of time deposit with original maturity over three months - 240,000
Repaymient from a joint venture - 172,000
Interest received 8,025 110,693
Placement of structured deposit {BOO,000 {1,045,000)
Arvance to a joint venture {558,750 (526,000)
Purchases of property and cquipment (1. 1400 1544
Proceeds an partial dispasal of a joint venture and assignment
of sharcholder's loans and interests thereon 1,090,432 -
Placement of time deposit with original maturity over three months {240,000 -
Expenses ansing from partial disposal of a joint venture (12,777 -
MNET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (19,443 1,223,197
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Mew bank loans raised 3,190,168 2,465,686
Bank loans repaid (2,318,054) {1,575, 163)
Interest paid on bank loans {15,575) (20,239)
Repayment of lease lability - (137}
Interest paid on lease lability {16)
Dividends paid to:
— owniers of the Company (317,710 (BGS,522)
— non-controlling interests of a subsidiary (5,556) {10,357}
MNET CASH FROM (LISED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 533,273 (5, 748)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4Bk, 934 1,031,400
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD 49,785 519,042
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHAMGE RATE CHAMNGES f, 323 1.U76
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD 19,042 1,552,319

Motes Cash and cath equivalomts comprise cach ot banks amd cagh on hand, amd depositn with banks subsjected o insigniticant risk aof
change In value, anil with a maturity of theee montbs or less fom date of placing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

1. General Information

Shenzhen Investment Floldings Bay Area Development Company Limited (the *Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares ane listed
an The Stock Fxchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange®). As at 31 December 2021, the
Company’s immediate holding company and sltimate holding company are Shenzhen Investment
International Capital Holdings Infrastructure Co, Lid (F S S EEE T 2R X R HE 2 &)
{*SHCHICT), a company incorporated in the Beitish Virgin lslands with limited lability, and Shenchen
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd (3 910788 50 1 8 4 82 81) (“SIHET), a company established in the PRC
with limited liability, respectively, During the year, Shenzhen Investment International Capital
Holdings Co., Limited CGEW| 1310 B & X0 E H B 2 5), intermediate halding company of the
Company entered inta an agreement with Mei Wah Industrial (Hong Kong) Limited (*Me Wah") (o
dispose of all of Hs equity Interest in SHCHIC. The transaction was completed on 11 lanuary 2022 and
Mei Wah became an infermediate holding company of the Company. Since Mei Wah is confrolled by
SIHMC, SIHC remaing the ultimate holding company of the Company upon completion of the
transaction,

The addresses of the registered ofiice and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section of corporate information in the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and the joint ventures are sel out in noles 29 and 15 respectively.,

The Company's functional currency and presentation currency are Reaminbi (“RMB"),

2. Application of Amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs™)

Amendmenis to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments (o IFRS: issued by the
International Accounting Standards Hoard (*IASE") for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statemants:

Amendments o IFRS 16 Cowid-19-Roelated Rent Concossions
Amendments ta IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, Interest Rate Bonchmark Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
Except as described below, the application of the amendments to IFRSs in the curment year has had no

material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the current and prios years
andior on the disclosures set out in these consolldated financial staternents.

Amniial Repory 3031 g1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

2. Application of Amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

Amendments lo IFRSs thal are mandalorily effective for lhe currenl year (continued)
Impacis on application of Amendmenis to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

“Interest Rale Benchmark Reform — Phase 27

The Group has applicd the amendments for the first time in the current vear, The amendments relate (o
changes in the basis lor determining (he contraciual cash flows of financial assets, Girancial liabilities
and lease liahifity as a result of inlerest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge accounting requirements
and the related disclosure requirements applying IFRS 7 *Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.

As at 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021, the Group had bank loans with carying amount of
RMB 1,076,349, 000 and RMB1 936,275,000 respectively, the interests of which are indexed 1o
benchmark rates that will or may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform, e, Hong Kong
Imterbank Offered Rate (“FIFROR").

The amendmesnts have bud no impact on the consolidated financial stalemenis as none of the relevant
contracts has been transitioned (o the selevant replacement rates during the year. The Group will apply
the practical expedient in relation to the changes in contractual cash flows resulting from the interest
rate benchmark refarm foe bank loans measured at amortised cost. Additional disclosures as requined
by IFRS 7 are set out in note 28,

MNew and amendments to IFRSs in issue but nol yel effective
The Group has not carly applicd the following new and amendments to IFESs that have been issued
bt are nidl yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments®

Amendments (o IFRS 3 Reference (o the Conceplual Framework?

Amendments to IFRS 100and 1AS 28 Sale o Contribution of Assets betwesn an lnviestor andd
s Associate or Joint YVerune

Amendment to IFES 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
10 June 2021

Amendments to 1AS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Mon-curment”

Amendments to LAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to 1AS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendmients o 1AS 12 Dederred Tax related b Assets and Liabilities arising
froom @ Single Transaction®

Amendments to IAS 16 Praperty, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use?

Amendments o LAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost af Fulfilling a Contract’

Amendments to IFRS Standards Annual Improvements 1o IFRS Standards 2018-2020¢

! Effective fof annwal pesiods beginning on o e 1 Apeil 2021,
- Bl tive dar annial gesiods Bagginilimg on or afies | fanuary 2022,
et lve for amnisl "k.'ll:ldb Ergml:ln_: on oF aftes 1 January 2033,
o Efiectlve for annual pediody beginnlng on or aitee o date io o deiermisod.

Excepd for Amendments to 1AS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”™ mentioncd
helow, the Directors anticipate that the application of all other acw and amendments o IFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foresecable future,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

2. Application of Amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments (o IFRSs in issue bul nol yel effeclive (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Currenl or Non-current”

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for af least twiehae months from reporting date for classification of labilities as current o
non-current, which:

*  specify that the classification of labilities as current or non-current should be based on rights that
are in existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments clarfy that:

(it the classification should not be affected by management intentions o expectations to seftle
thi liability within twilve months; and

{iiy i the right Is conditional on the compliance with covenants, the right exists if the conditions
are met at the end of the reparting period, oven if the lender does not ost compliance until a
later dlate; and

*«  clarify that if a habiliey has terms that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
setilement by the transfer of the entity's own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or nan-current only §f (he entity recognises the oplion separately as an
couity mstrument applying 1AS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”,

As al 31 December 2021, the Group's rights to defer settlement for borrowings of RMAT, 053,922,000
are subject to compliance with cedain financial ratios within twelve months from the reporting date,
Such borrowings were classified as non-current as the Group met such ratios at 31 December 2021,
The Group will assess the potential impacts of the amendments in relation (o the borrowings with
fimancial and other covenants, The impacts on application, I any, will be disclosed in the Group's
fusture consdidated financial slatements,

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the amendments will not resull in reclassification of
the Growp's other liabilities as a1 31 December 2021,

Amniial Repory 3031 *B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidaled financial statemenis
The consolidated financial statoments have been peeparcd in accondance with IFRSs issued by the
1ASE. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information is
considercd material i such information is reasonably expected o influence decisions made by
primary users, In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securitics on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Crrdinance,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain fimancial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of cach reporting period.
as explained in the accounting policies set out below,

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
oot antd services,

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset o pand o transter a liability in an
arderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liahility, the Growp takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if marked participants would take those characieristics info account when pricing the
asset or liahdity at the measurement date, Fair value for measurement andfor disclosure purposes
i these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment ransaclions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 *Share-based Payrent”, leasing
ransactions (hat are accounted foe in accordance with IFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that
have some similarities (o fair valoe but are nod faie value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
“Inventonies”™ of value in use in 1AS 36 “Impairment of Asseis”,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised Into Level 1,
2or 3 based on the degree to which the inpots fo the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measuremaent in its entirety, which are described as
follows;

- Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markeis for identical assets or
liakilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than qualed prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the assel or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset ar liability.

03 Shrnrhrn Investment Hihfings Ray Aces Dpvebapaeesd Cosapany s ed
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies
Basis of consolidalion
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
entitics controdled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control 15 achieved when the Company:

#  has power over the investee;
* s exposed, ar has rights, 1o variable retuens from its involvement with the investee: and
+  has the ability to use its power 10 affect its retums,

The Group reassesses whether o oot it controls an investee if facts and cirgumstances indicate
that there are changes o one or more of the three elemenis of control listed above,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains contral over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses contral of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of
prafit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains contral until the
date when the Group ceases to cantral the subsidiary,

Prafit or loss and cach item of other comprehensive income are atiributed (o the owners of the
Company and (o the non-controdling interests, Total comprehensive income of subsidianes s
attributed 1o the owners of the Comparny and to the non-controlling interests even if this resulls in
the non-controlling intercsts hinving a deficit balance,

When necessary, adjustments are made bo the financial statements of subsidiaries o bring thelr
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies,

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
iransactions beiween members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interiats in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's equity thercin,
which represent present ownership interests entitling their holders 1o a propostionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liguidation,

Annial Reprs 20031 95
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inlerests in joint veniures

A joint wenture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint cantral is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arangement, which exists only when decisions
about the refevant activities requine unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Thee results and assets and labilitios of joint ventures are incorporated in these consalidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting, The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accaunting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Appropriale
adjustments have been made (o conform the joint venture’s accounting palicies (o those of the
Group, Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is inftially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Crroup's share of the profit or loss and other comprebensive income of the joint venture, Changes
in fel asseds of the joint vientune other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are nol
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group's share of losses of 3 joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that joint
woniure (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's nel
investment in the joint venlurel, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses,
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
comstructive obligations or made payments on behall of the joint venfure.

An ivestment in a joinl verure 5 accounted for using the equity method from the date on which
the nvestee becomes a joint venture, On acquisition of the investment in @ joint venlure, any
excess of the cost ol the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assels and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
careying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Growp's share of the net fair value of the
identiftable assets and labilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, 15 recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there i an objective evidence that the interest in a joinl venture may
be impaired. When any abjective evidence exists, the enfire carrying amount of the invesiment
(including goedwill) s tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount thigher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment recognised is nod allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment, Any reversal of that
impairment is recognised in accordance with 1A3 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies (continued)

Interests in joint veniures (confinued)

Whan the Group ceases o have joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of thee entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in peofit or loss,
When the Group retaing an interest in the former joint veniure and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition, The difference between the carrying amount of the joint ventire and the faic valoe of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the joint venture
is included in the determimation of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture, In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that joint venture on the same basis as would be regquired if that joint venture had
directly disposed of the related asseis or labilitles, Thereiore, i a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprebensive income by that joint venture would be reclassified (o profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or labilities, the Group reclassifics the gain or loss from
equity 1o profil or loss (as § reclassification adjustment) opon partial disposal af the relevant joint
VEmLre.

When the Group reduces s ownership interest in a foint venture bul the Group continues (o use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies o profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership intenest if that gain o loss wauld be reclassified to prafit or loss on the disposal of the
redated assets o liabilities,

The Group has incurred additional development expenditure for the construction and
development of the toll expressways operated by the joint ventures, which were not accounied
foe by those entities. Such cost are included in additional cost of invesiments in joint ventures and
are amorhised over the joint venture period on the same basis as that adopted by the relevant joint
ventures in respect of amorisation of its project cost, commencing from the date of operation of
the project undertaken, On disposal of a joint venture, the attributable amount of the unamortised
additional cost of investments §s included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal,

When a group entity transacts with a joind venture of the Group, profits and losses resulling from
the transactions with the joinl venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
staterments only o the extent of inderssts in the joint venture that are nol related o the Group,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are tangible asses that are held for use in the supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes. Property and eouipmaent ane stated in the consolidated statement
af financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any,

Depreciation is recognised 5o as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated wseful Tives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated wseful lives and depreciation method are roviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospeclive basis,

An ftem of properdy and equipment s derccognised upon disposal or when no future ecommmec
benefits are expoected to arise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or [oss arising on thio
disposal or retirement of an item of properly and cquipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the Carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
s,

Revenue from contracts with cusiomers

Ihe Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, 1.0, when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the paricular perormance obligation is fransferred
o the customer,

A pedormance abligation represents a pood or seevice (or 3 bundle of poors or services) that s
distinct or a series of distingt goods o serdces that ane substantially the same,

Contral is transierred over time and revenue is recognised over fime by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the rélevant periormance obligation i one of the following
crileria is met;

*  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
peramance as the Group pericanms;

= the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group perionms; o

= the Group's periormance does nof creabe an assef with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable aght to pavment for periormance completed to date,

Oitherwise, revenue is rncngniﬁcd at a point in time when the customer obifains control of the
distinct pood o service,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of gualifving
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to ged ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All ather borrowing costs ase recognised in profit o boss in the period in which they ane incurred.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right o contral the use of an
icdentified asset for a period of ime in exchange for consideration.

For contracis entered into or modified on or after the date of initial application of 1IFRS 16 or
arising from business combinations, the Group assesses swhother a contract is or contains a lease
hased on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, madification date or acqguisition date, as
appropeiate, Such conteact will aot be reassessed unlbess the terms and conditions of the contrac
are subsequently changed,

The Group as a lessee

Showr-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption (o leases of car parks, office and
stafi quarters that have a lease term of iwelve months or less irom ihe commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option, Lease payments on shord-term leases are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease ferm,

Right-oi-use asser
The cost of rght-of-use asset includes:

«  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; and
*  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use asset is measured al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease lakbility,

Kight-af-use asset in which the Group is reasonably certain to obiain ownership of the underlying
leased asset.at the end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life, Otherwise, right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term,

The Group presents sight-of-use asset as a separate ling item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposit
Redundable rental deposit paid s accounted wunder IFRS 9 and initially measwred at fair valoe.
Adjustments to fair valoe at initial recognition are considesed as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of rght-of-use asset,

Lizase Nataility

AL the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the lease liability an
the prosent value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date, In calculating the present value
of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrawing rate at the lease commencemint
clate if the inberest rate implicit i the lease is not readily determinable,

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentivis receivalile,

Aiter the commencement date, lease hability 15 adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments,

The Group remeasures lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment (o the related right-
of-use asset) whenever;

* b lease term has changed ore there is a chanpe in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
aption, in which case the related lease lability s remeasuned by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate al the date of reassessment,

= the lease payments change due o changes in marked rental rates following a market rent
review, in which cases the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
Iease payments using the imitial discount rate,

The Group presents lease liability as a separate [ine ikem on the consolidated statement of
iinancial position,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies (continued)
Leases icontinued)
The Growp as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications
The Group accounts Jor a lease mahification as o separate lease i

*  the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or mose
underlying asscts; and

*#  the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensuraie with the stand-alone
price jor the increase in scope and any appropeiate adjustmenis to that stand-alone price to
reflect the circumstances of the particolar contracl,

For a lease modification that is mod accounted for as a separaie lease, the Group remeasures the
lease labdlity based on the lease teem of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
paayments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the madification,

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liability by making corresponding
adjustments 1o the relevant right-oi-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or noa-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the maodified contract to cach lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease companent and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
COMpPONEnts.

Government granis
Goverament grants are nof recognised until there i< reasonable assurance that the Growp will
comply with the conditions attaching (o them and that the grants will be received.

Goveramaent grants related to income that are receivable as compensation for expenses o losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial suppor o the Group with no

future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income”,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in ourrencies
ather than the functional currency of that entity (foreign curmencies) ane recopnised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions, At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foneign curmencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, ane recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Foe the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liahilities of
the Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (ie.
RMEB) using cxchange rates prevailing at the end of cach reporting pericd. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchangs rates Nuctuate
significantly during the period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are
wsed, Exchange dificrences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accurmulated in cquity under the heading of transiation reserve,

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a forcign
aperation, or a disposal involving loss of contral over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
aperation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arcangement that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial assetl, all of the exchange differences
accumilated in equity in respect of that operation atiributable 1o the owners of the Company are
reclassified o profit or loss,

Retirement benefil costs
Payments (o deined contribution refirement beneiit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employecs have rendered service entitling them to the contributions,

Short-term employee benefils

Shart-term employee benelits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
o be paid as and when employees rendered the services, All short-term employves benelits ane
recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset,

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employvees after deducting any amount already
paid.

02 Shrnshen Investament Huihfings Ray Arvs Developamest Cosspuany § s sl

188/262



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bOdoooooooo00o000o0o0o0odoooooo0o00000nodn(ecsss)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies (continued)

Taxalion
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax carrently payable and deferned .

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from
prafit bofore tax because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
flems that are never taxable or deductible, The Group’s lability for current tax is calculated using
fan rates that have been enacted of substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary diffierences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statemensts and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax labilities are generally recognised for all taxable
femporary differences, Deferred fae aseets are genecally recognised for all deductible fempocary
differences to the extent that it is probable that faxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temparary difierences can be wtilised. Such deferred tax assets and labilitics are
not recognised if the temporary difference anses from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilitigs in a transaction that affects neither the laxable prodit nor the accounting prodit,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temparary differences associated with
inwvestments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except where the Groop is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will nol reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
ditferences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probabile that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which lo utilise the bencfits of the
temporary differences and they ane expected to reverse in the foresecable future,

The carying amount of deforred tax assets is reviewed al the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is ne longer probable that suificient taxable prafits will be available
fex allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply in the
prerrad m which the lability is settled of the agset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted o substantively enacted by the end of the reporting perioad.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the lax consequences that would
fedlow from the mannes in which the Group expects, at the end of the reparting period, 1o recover
or settle the carrving amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in which the Group recog nises
the right-of-use asset and the related lease liability, the Group firs! determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use asset or the lease lability,

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are altributable to the lease liabilities, the
Group applies 1A% 12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole, Tempaorary differences
relating to right-of-use assels and lease liabifities are assessed on a net basis. Excess ol
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
lighilities results in net deductible temporary difierences,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Dweferred tax assets and liabilitios are offset when theee is a legally enforceabile right to set off
current fax assets against current fax labilities and when they relate o income tixes levied (o the
same taxable entity by the same taxation authority,

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except whon they relate to items that ane
recopnised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instrumenis

Financial assets and financial liabilitios are recognised when a group entity becomes a party (o
the contractual provisions of the mstroment. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recogoised and derecognised on a trade date basis, Regular way purchases o sales aee
purchases or sales of financial assets that eequire delivery of assets within the fime frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place,

Financial assets and financeal liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs thag
are directly atributable to the acquisition or fsswe of financial assets and financial liabilities iother
than financial assets or financial labilities at e value through prodit or loss (TFVTPLT are added
t0 or deducted from the fair valee of the financial assets or Ginancial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable o the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FYTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amodtised cost OF & francial asset oF
financial lability and of allocating interest income and inlerest expensce over the relevant period,
The eficctive interest rate is the raie that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
imterest rate, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial lability, or, where appropriate, a shorer period, o the net carrying
amount on initial recognition,
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assels
Classification and subsequent measorement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions ane subsequently measured af amostised cosl;

*  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms give rise on speciiied dates (o cash lows that are solely payments: of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measored at fair value
through oiber comprebensive income (CFYTOCI™):

#  the financial asset s held within a business model whose abjective i achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that ane solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount sutstanding,

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of
a financial asset the Group may irmevocably elect 1o present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equily investment in other comprehensive income i that equity investment is peither beld for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acguirer in 3 business combination to
whach IFRS 3 “Business Combinations™ applics,

Amuortised cost and interest inCome

Infercst income is recognised using the effective interest method for fimancial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost, For financial instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the efiective interest
tate 1o the gross carrying amount of o fnancial assel, except lor linancial assets that have
subsequently bocome credit-impaired (see belowl, For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate o
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period, If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interes! income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate 1o the gross camying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and sphsequent measurement of financial assefs (continued)
Equity instrurments designated as al FYTOC)
Investments in equity instroments at FYVTOCT are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprebensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject o impai rment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit of loss on dispasal of the equity
investments, and will be transierred (o retained profis,

Dividends from these investments in cquity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent o
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the other income line
it in prodit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do nol mect the critena for being measured at amortised cost or FYTOCT or
designated as FVTOC! are measured at FYTPL.

Financial assets at FYTPL are measured at fir value at the end of each reporting period, with any
fair value gaing or losses recognised in profit or loss, The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excluedes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the “ather
income” line item,

Irpairment of francial assels

The Group perdorms impairment assessment under expected credit loss (*ECL") model on financial
assets (including interest and other receivables, amount due from a joint veature, time deposit
with onginal maturity over three months and bank balances and cash) and ather stem (financial
guarantee contract] which ane sulject io impairment assessment under IFRS 9, The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition,

Lifetime FCL represents the BCL that will result from all possibie default events over the expected
lite of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of liletime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are possible within twelve months after the
reparling date. Assessments are done based on the Group's historical credit loss expenence,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

For all instruments, the Graup measures the loss allowance equal to 12-momth ECL, unless there
has been a significant increase in credit sk since initial recognition, in which case the Crnoup

recognises lifetime ECL, The assessment af whether litetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (confinued)

Impairment of financial assels fcontinued)

Sigmificand incredse in credil sk

In assessing whether the credit sk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default cccurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessmenl, the Group considers bath quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whaether credit risk
hats increased significantly:

« an actual or expected significant detedioration in the financial instrument’s external (il
available) or internal credit rating;

*  significant deteriomation in external market indicators of oredit risk, e.g. a significan increase
in the credit sproad, the credit defaolt swap prices fos the deltor;

* exisling or forecast adverse changes in business, financial o economic conditions thal are
expecied 1o Cause 3 significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

*  an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating resulis of the deldeor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technofogical environment of the debior that results in a significant decrease in the deblor's
ability to meet its debt obligations,

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit nsk has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contraciual payments are mone than 30 days
past die, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonsirates
otherwise,

For financial guaraniee contract, the date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of financial puarantee contract, the Group considers the changes in the risk that
the specified debtor will default on the contract,

The Group regularly monilors the effectiveness of the critenia used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credil risk and revises them as appropriate 1o ensure that the criteria
are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due,
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Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assels fcontinved)

Definition of detaull

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of defacll occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicatos that the debdos s
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (withoet taking into account any
collaterals held by the Croup),

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is’ Crodit-impaired when ond or more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated futune cash flows of that financial asset bave occurred, Evidence that a
financial assed is credit-impaired includes observable data abowt the fillowing evenis:

= sigmiticant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
* g breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

*  the lenderis) of the bosrower, for cconomic of contraciual reasons relating to the borrowers
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concessionis! that the lender(s) would
ol atherwise consider;

= it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
FMEANTEAlON; OF

s the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties,

Wiite-odi policy

The Group writes oil a financial assel when there fs information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficully and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under Hgudation or bas entened into bankrapicy procesdings,
Financial assets written aff may still be subject ta enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropeiate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profil o loss,
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets [continued)

Impairment of financial assels fcontinued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a funclion of the probability of default, loss given default (ie the
magnitudhe of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessmoent of tha
prabability of default and foss given default is bascd on historical data and forward-looking
information, Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that s
determined with the respective risks of default oCcurring as the weights,

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the comtract and the cash flows that the Group expects o receive, discounfed
at the efiective interest rate determined at inftial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required o make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the ECL s the present value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credin loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects 10 receive from the holder, the
debtor or any othor party,

For ECL on financial guarantee contract for which the effective interest rale cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks that are specific to the cash fows but only if, and o the extent that, the
risks are taken into account by adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shorialls
being discounted,

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrving amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income 15 calculated based on amaorised
cost of the financial asset.

Exceql for linancial guarantee contract, the Group recognises an impairment gain of loss in peofi
o ks for all financial instrimients by adjusting their carrying amoint.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of fimancial assels

The Group derecognises a financal asset only when the contractual rghts (o the cash Tlows iom
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another ontity,

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difierence between the
assel’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected on mitial
recognition to measure at FYTOC!, the comulative gain or loss previously accumulated o ihe
invesstment rovaluation reserve is ot reclassified to profit or loss, Bt is tansforred o eetained
profits,

Financial liahilities and equity

Classification as delt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial labilitics or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial lability and
an equity insframent

Equily instrumenis

An equily insfrument is any contrack thal evidences o residual interest in the assels of he Group
after deducting all af s lHabilites, Equity iastromaents ssuced by the Company are recognised at
the procesds received, net of direct issoe costs,

Financial liabilities
All financial liakilities including payalbles, bank loans and dividend payables are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, wsing the effective interest method.

Financial goarantes confracts

A financial guarantee contract is 2 contract that reguines the issuer oo make speciiied payments o
reimburse the holder Tor a loss i incurs because a speciiied debtor fails i make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guaraniee confract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequenthy measured at the higher of:

= jhe amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9: and

=- the amount imitially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significanl accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continwed)
Derecognition of financial labilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Groop's obligations an
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the considerstion paid and payable iz recognised in profit or
s,

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as & resplt of inferest rale
benclmark refarm

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial
liahility to which the amortised cost measurement applics as a result of interest rate benchmark
rform, the Group applies the practical expedient o account for these changes by updating ibe
effective interesd mate, such change in effective inferest rate normally has no significant eficct an
the carrying amaunt of the relevant financial asset or financial liability,

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is required by interes) rate
benchmark reform i and only i, both these conditions are met:

+  the change is necessary as a direct consequence of interest rate benchmark reform; and

*  the new basis jor determining (he contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
preevinus basis fie, the basis immediately preceding the change),

For ather changes made (o o financial asset or financial liability in addition to changes (o the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows required by interest rate beachmark reform, the
Group first applies the practical expedient to the changes required by interest rate benchmark
redorm by updating the effective interest rate, The Group then applics the applicable reguirements
in IFRS 9 an modification of a financial asset or a financial kability 1o the additional changes to
which the practical expedient does nol apply.

Impairment on property and equipment and right-oi-use asset

Al the end of thie repodting period, the Group reviews the carrving amounts of its property. and
equipment and right-nf-use assel (o determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevam
assot is estimated in order (o determine the extent of the impairment (if anyl.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment and right-of-use asset are estimated
individually, When it is not possible 1o estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the ::ash-g{-neraling unit 1o which the asset belongs,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-use asset (continued)
in testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate asscts are allocated (o the relevant
cashegenerating unit when a reasonable and consisient basis of allocation can be established, or
atherwise thiy are allocabed (o thie smallest group of ciash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistont allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-genorating unit ar group of cash-gencrating units to which the comporate asset belongs, and
is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit of group of cash-
ZEACTALING LNils.

Recoverable amaount is the higher of fair value less costs of dispotal and value in use. In assessing
vialue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount raie that reflects curment market assessmenis of the ime value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or 3 cash-generating wunit] for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not bisen adjusted,

I the recoveralde amount of an asset (or a cash-gencrating umit) is estimated 1o be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset o a cash-generating unit) is reduced o s
recaveralle amount, For corporate assets of portion of corporte assets which cannot be alloscated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating wnit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounis of the corporate
assets of portion of corporate assets allocated (o that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of r.psh-gﬂ:nﬂﬂlinﬂ units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment is allocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwall (if applicablel and
then (o the other assets on a pro-eata basis hased on the carrying amount of cach assel in the unit
ar the group of cash-generating units, The carrying amount of an asset s not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurablel. its value in use (if determinablel and
zero, The amount of the impairment that would otherwise have been allocated 1o the asset is
allocaled pra rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units, An
impairment is recognised immediately in prodit or loss.

Where an impainment subsequently reverses, the cannying amount of the asset (oF cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating wnits) is increased (o the revised cstimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does nod exceed the carrying amount that
would bave been determined had no impairment been recognised for the asset (or 8 cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years, A reversal of an impairment is
recogrised immediately in prodil or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group”s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the Directors are
reguired to make judgements, cstimates and assumptions aboul the carrying amowds of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated assumptions
are baserd on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
mary diffier from these cstimates,

The cstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis, Revisions 1o accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is rovised il the revision affects only that
period, or in the year of the revision and future: peviods of the revision affects both current and future
periods,

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, aparl from those involving estimations, that the Directors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recogaised in the consolidated financial stitements,

Classification of Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway Company Limited (“GS |V"),
Guangdong Guangzhou-Fhuhai West Superhighway Company Limiled (*GZ West [¥™) and
Guangzhou Zhentong Development Company Limited (M B @ W S 2 B H M & 8)
(“Xintang V") as joint venlures

All G5 IV, G West |V and Xintang IV are limited lability companies whose legal form confers
separation Between the parties (o the joint arrangement and the Company itsell, Furthermoee, there are
no contractual arrangements or any other facts and circomstances that specify that the parties to the
joint aerangement have nghts o the assets and obligations for the liahiliies of the joint arangement,
Accordingly, G5 |V, GZ Wes! |V and Xintang |V are classified as joint ventures of the Growp, Details
ane set oul in note 15,

Key sources of eslimalion uncerlainty
The followings are the key assumplions concerming the future, and other key sources of estimation

uncerainly at the end of the reporting periods that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment o the carrying amounts of assets within the next fimancial year
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

4, Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty tcontinued)

Key sources of estimation uncerlainty (continued)
Interesis in joint veniures/share of results of joint venlures

(il Amortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures

Amortisation of concession intangible asseis of the joint ventures of the Group is calculated based
on units-of-usage Basts, Le. the ratio of actual traffic volume of the aaderdying toll expressways
fior a pasticular period over the total expecied traffic volume of the underdying tall exprissways
ovir the remaining concession periods of the service concession agreements: The fofal expected
traffic vilume over the remaining concession period was estimated by the managemoent with
fefesence to a repor prepared by a third party traffic consultant in a prior year taken inta
consideration of varnous factors such as the annual growth rate of the traific volume, the actsal
traffic valume in the recent periods, the change of the transportation network of the region and
government policies relating to the toll expressway operation in the PRC. As part of the
established policy of the Group, the management has reviewed the todal expected traffic volume
al the end of the reporting periods. Adjustments muy meed o e made o the carying amounts of
concession intangible assets should these be a matesial difierence between the otal expected
fratfic volume and the actual results,

As at 31 December 2021, the interests in joint ventunes amounted o BMB4,971,183,000 (2020
RMB4.673,.658,0001 and the share of resulis of joint veniures for the year then ended 31
December 2021 amounted o RMEBGRSE, 738,000 (2000 RME245,090,000), Included in the share
of results of joint ventures was an amount of RMBEGI9, 763,000 (2020; BMB625,3%6, 0000, which
represented the share of amortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures of the
Group, The management considers that the amortisation is calculated by reference to the best
estimates of the tofal expected fraffic volumes of the undedying toll expressways and they should
ril Be materlally different rom the actual traffic volumes in future, The curienl year amoeication
of concession intangible assets is less (2020 less) than the amortisation cstimated in the prior
financial year based on the ther expected traffic volumes for future linancial years and the efiect
on share of resulis of joind ventures is approximate o RMEST 685,000 (2020: RMBGG,835, 0001,

fii} Resurfacing obligations of the joint ventures
The joint venlures of the Group have contractual obligations under the contractual service
arrangements o maintain the toll expressways (o a specified level of serviceability over the
respective concession periods, These obligations to maintain or restore the oll expressways,
excepl for upgrade services, are 1o be recognised and measured as resurfacing obligations,
Resurfacing obligations had been made at the present value of expenditures expected o he
imcurred by the joint ventures to settle the obligations,

As at 31 December 2021, the interests in joint ventures amounted (o BMB4,971,183,000 (2020
RMBA, 673,688, 0000 and share of results of joint ventures for the year then ended 31 December
2021 amounted o RMBGO5E, 758,000 (2020 RMB2495,090,000). Included in the interests in joing
vontures was an amount of RMB276,056,000 (2020: RMB256,694, 0001, which mpre.r.entnd the
share of provision for the resurfacing abligations of the joint ventures of the Group.
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Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty icontinued)

Key sources of eslimalion uncerlainly (continued)

Interests in joint ventures/share of resulls of joinl ventures (continued)

(i} Resurfacing obligations of the joint ventures (continued)
The amount expected to be required 1o settle the abligations at the end of the reporting period is
determined based on the number of major resurfacing works o be undertaken over the
cancession periods under the service concession agreements and the expected costs o be
incurred for cach event. The costs are then discounted to the present value based on a pre-fax
discount rafe,

The expected costs for maintenance and resuriacing and the timing of such events o ke place
involve estimates made by the management, which were based on the resurfacing plans of the
Grroup, historical costs incurmed for similar activities and the fatest quotations from the service
prosvider.

If the expected expenditures, resorfacing plans and discount rate were diffecent firom the
management's current estimates, thes change in resuriacing olligations s required (o be accounted
foe prospectively.

The management is of the view that the discount rate currently vsed in the current estimate
shodled reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligations,

5. Segment Information

The Group’s reportable and operating segments are defermined based an information reported (o the
chiet operating decision maker (*CODM®) for the purpose of resosrce allocation and periormance
assessment.

Infarmation ritported to the CODM, includes segment revenue, the Group®s share of joint venfures’
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and net exchange gainfdoss (“EBITOAT, the
Group’s share of joint ventures' depreciation and amortisation including amortisation of additional
cost of investments in joint ventures (“depreciation amd amortisation™, the Group's share of joint
ventures' inferest and tax excluding tax on exchange gaindloss and including withholding fax on
earnings distributed by joint ventures (“imerest and fax™), and segment results, The CODM is more
specifically focused on individual toll expressways projects and land development and wtilisation
project gantly operated and managed by the Growp and the relevant joint ventune parners during the
year, Accordingly, the Group's reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are theretone as bollows:

— Guangzhou — Shenzhen Superhighway (*GS Superhighway™)
—  Guangzhou — dhuhai West Superhighway (G2 West Superhighnecay ™

—  Xintang Interchanpe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

5. Segment Information (continued)

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.

Segment revenue and results
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M Mot exchange gain inef of rlaied income tax) s composed of the Group's share of the exchange gain (set of eolated
income tax) of a joint venture of BME 17,719,000 (202(; RMEBESS, 755, 0080 ar the net exchange gain of the Group of
RANRT, ST 1000 { 2030 B 1, 376E,000)

The segment revenue represents the Group's share of joint ventures' toll revenue recelved, and
receivable (not of value-added tax) from the operations of toll expressways and revenue from sales of
propertics received, and receivable {net of value-added tax) from land developmoent and utilisation
peoject in the PRC based on the profit-sharing ratios specified in the relevant joint venture agreements.
All of the segment revenue reported abave is earned from external customers.

The segment resulls represent the (i) Group’s share of joint ventures” resulls from the operations of 1ol
expressways and land development and wtilisation in the PRC before net exchange gainfloss (net of
refated income fax) respectively based on the profit-sharing ratios and shareholding percentage
specified in the relevant joint venture agreements, (i) net of the withholding tax attributed to the
dividend received from and the undistributed earnings of the joint ventures; and (i} amartisation of
additional cost of investments in joint ventures. This is the measure reported o the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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5. Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and resulls (continued)
The total segment results can be reconciled to the share of rosults of joint ventures as presented in
consolidated staterment of profit or loss and ather comprebensive income as follows:

2040 2021
RME QOO0 RMEDGD
Totall segmesnt results 214,014 598,902
Add:
Mt exchange gain (net of related income tix) 59,735 17,719
Withholding tax attributed to the dividend received from
and the undistributed carnings of the joint ventures 21,321 40,137
Share of results of jBint vertures as presented in consolidated
statement of prodit or loss and other comprehensive income 295, 0% 656,758

Other segmenl information

The below other segment information, included in the measure of segment profit or loss, represents the
Group's share of interest income from bank deposits and amount due from a joint venture and
imvestiment income from structured deposit, Such amount relating to the joint ventures are eliminated
under equity method of accounting to reconcile from “Segment tatal”™ to *Consolidated total”.

] GZ West Xintang Segeaent Coasolidared

Year Superhigheay Soperhighway  interchange ot Himination  Enallocated total
RAR OG0 RATE O RMBTHO0 EAMBTN AR D00 RAB TN RME K

2020 BATY 2,186 114 1,279 M2 39,979 59,979
bk | 10237 1,496 Skeb 12,297 N BLI5T 02,257

Geographical information

The operations of the Group's joint ventures are located in the PRC All of the joint ventures' revenue
from external customers was generated from the services provided in the MRC and the location of the
non-current assets excluding interests in joint ventures, amount due from a joint venture and eguity
instrument at FYTOCL property and equipment and right-of-use asset located in the PRC amounting o
RME, 044,000 (2020: RMB1,782,000) are in Hong Kong,

Segment assets and liabilities
Sepment assels and liabilitios are not disclosed in the consolidated financial staternents as ey are not
regularly provided to CODRM for the purpose of resource allocation and pedormance assessment.,

Annual Reporr 2021 117

203/262



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O00000000o0bOdoooooooo00o000o0o0o0odoooooo0o00000nodn(ecsss)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

6. Other Income

2020 2027
REME (00 R 0

Interest income from:
Bank deposits BS99 36,325
Amount due from a joinl senture 49,537 58,405
Investment income from structured deposit 1,503 6,947
Government granls {Nodel 1,027 -
Drividend income from eguily instrument al PYTOC 1,100 604
Cithers 2,072 2,089
64,178 B4,950

Mot The Group recognited govermmend grants of BMB1.027.000 in respect of COVIDG19-elaled subdidies, of which
BB 027 000 nelated to Dmployment Suppost Scheme peovided by the Heng Kong Government for thes year ended 11
Dhecemlser 2000 (20031 : il

7. Other Gain and Loss

2020 202
KMETNKD R B DN
Met exchange gain 13,578 7.571
Write back of unrealised loss related to partial disposal
of a joint venlune in prior year - 12,056
13,378 19,627
8. Share of Results of Joint Ventures
2020 2021
FME TR RMEB DM
Share of resulls of joint ventures before share of impated (nterest
expenses incurred by a joinl venture on intenest-fnoe registered
capital contributions made by the Group and amotization of
additional cost of investments in joint ventures (Nole 13) J88,0059 752,059
Amortisation of additional cost of Investments in joint veniunes {92 9 (93,301)
Share of imputed imerest expenses incurred by a joint venture on
inferest-free registered capital contributions made by the Group {55,784} {59,280
Imputed interest income recognised by the Group on interest-free
registered capital contributions made by the Group 55,7684 59,280
295,090 B50,758
T18  Shrnshen investment HohEings Ry Ares Dyvelopmeest Cosspany §imied
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9. Income Tax Expense

2020 2t
RME OO0 RME D00
The tax charge comprises;
PRC Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT™)
The Group 176,487 30412
Refund of EIT of a subsidiary recognised in prior year - {5,781)
Duferned fax (Note 26) {5,483) 35,811
171,004 H0,440

Mo provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there was no assessable profit derived from
or arising in Hong Kong for both vears.

The EIT charge of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 included an amount of
RMBS, 141,000 (2020: RMB26,3140,000) ropresenting the 5% withholding tax imposed on dividends
declared during the year by joint ventures of the Growp of which the carresponding amount had
already been provided for defermed tax in prior years in respect of undistributed camings of a joint
wirniLne.,

The income tax oxpense for the vear can be reconciled to the profit before tax per consolidated
statement of prodit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2040 20z

RMEODD  RMEDG)

Praafit basfone tax Hbd, 787 G9H,52h
Tax at normal PRC income tax rate of 25% (20200 25%) 216,197 174,632
Edfioct of different tax rates on income tax expense {464) (D5}
Tax pfiect of income not taxable for tax purposes {5,332) (9,174)
Tax cffect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13,260 14,3214
Tax effect of share of results of joint venlures {73,773} (164,189
Withholding Lax 21,321 64,952
Income fax expense 171,004 80,440
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Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

10. Profit for the Year

2020 2pz2r
REME (00 R 0

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:
Auditor's remuneration 1,668 1,946
Directors” emoluments (Note 11) 8,007 8,967
Oither stalf cosls 17,530 18,393
Total staii costs 25,567 27,360
Dixpreciation of property and egquipment 575 He7
Depreciation of right-af-use assets - 147
Sheot-term ledse expense 1,791 2,405
Interest on bank loans and finance charges 17,266 635
Interest on lease liability - 16
Tatal inance costs 17,266 651

11. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments

Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or pavable to cach of the 8 (2020: 9 Directors were as follows:
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The Exccutive Directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group, The emoluments of the Non-gxeculive
Dvirectors and Independent Non-executive Directors shown above were paid for their services as
Directors of the Company,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

11. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments (eontinued)

Directors” emoluments (continued)
Palies

Ll WA Wi HU® wos appobnibed as an Buvecuthve Dhimector ard the Chalrman ol e Board of Diecton of the Compasy on 11
December 2021,

b M, Sy LIU® coased Be actas 4 Son-secothve Dievcse amd ghe Chabmman of e Board of Dineches o e Comgany
on 11 December 2021,

(=] M. livang TANG® ¢ ol 10 act dn 4 Mon-exes utivg Dinscbor of the Company on 12 Augit 220
iy M Wi AONG® wak appainited a8 5 Nod-svecifive Divectos of the Company an 1.3 Agguat 20210

e Fao didentiication puspase only

Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments
O the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Groaop, 3 (202005 3) were Direchions whose
details of their emoluments are disclosed abowve,

The emaoluments of the remaining 2 (2020: 23 highest paid emplovees were a8 follows:

FLIE N2y

RME OO} RMBE'OO)

Salaries and odher benefits 2,265 24
Discretionary bomus 274 m
Contribiilion 1o retiremenl benefits plans 32 0
2,571 2,305

The number of the highest paid employees who are nod Directors whose remuneration fell within the
fullowing bands is as follaws:

2020 2021

Mo, af Mo, of

empovess employees

HES 1,000,007 to HEKST, 500,000 ¥ 1

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, no emoluments were paid by the Group o any
of the: persons who ane Dicectors o the five highest paid individuals of the Grosp as an inducement to
join or upon jpining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Mone of the Directors has waived
any emdaluments during both vears,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

12. Earnings Per Share

Thie calculation of the basic camings per share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

20201 2027
RAE TN R
Earnings for the purpose of basic earmings per share DB, b0 BOY9,208
Number of shares
200 2021
MNumber of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
carnings por share 081,690,281 3,087,690,28%

Mo diluted earnings per share have been presented as there was no potential ordinary shares in issue
during both woars,

13. Dividends

2020 2027
RMG K R B0

Dividends recognised as a distribution during the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 paid

of RMEY.1 cenls jequivalent to HET 0936835 centsh

(2020 for the year ended 31 December 2019 paid

of RMB10.1 cents (equivalent to HKL 3200989 cents))

per share 320,807 1,511
Special imerim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020

paid of RMBI0 cents [equivalent to HR1T,787600 cents)

per share 307,715 -
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021

paid of RMBS.3 cents (equivalent to HE1 1147631 cents)

per share - 286,495
628,522 568,006

2020 02

RME 0 RMB T

Propoded dividend:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2 proposed
of RMBE10.45 conts (equivalent to HK12 80879 cents)
{2020; for the year ended 31 December 2020 proposed of
RMBO.T cents leguivalent io HKTO.936835 cents)i per share 280,434 322087

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 of RMBI0.45 cents (eguivalent to
HK12,880879 cents) per share is proposed by the Board of the Directors. The dividend is subject 1o
approval by sharehalders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and have not been included as
liabilities in these consolidated financial statements. The proposed final dividend is calculated based
on the total number of issued shares at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

14, Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group has established the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme®) for its Hong
kong emiployees, The assets of the scheme are beld separately in funds which are under the control of
independent trustees. The metinement benefit scheme contributions charged 1o profit aor loss oepresent
contributions paid or payable by the Group to the scheme at 5% of cach of the employees” monthly
relovant income capped ot HES30,000, In addition, the PRC employees employed by the Group are
memibers of the state-managed retivement benefit schemes operated by the PRC Government, The
Grroup is required 10 contribute 12% of their payroll o the retirement benefit schemes 1o fund the
henefits, The only obligation of the Group with respect o the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes, At 31 Docember 2021, there were no forfeitod
contributions available to reduce fulure obligations, The total contributions made by the Groug to the
MPF Scheme and the PRC retirement beneiit schemes for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
EMHB2, 660,000 (r020: RMEB1,527 000

15. Interests in Joint Ventures

2020 2021
RME 00D RME OGO
Unlisted invesiments:
Al cosl
Censt of investment (0 a joint vealure 2,022,289 2,476,789
Additional cost of investments 2,520,218 2,510,218
Share of results of joint ventures before shane of mputed
interest expenses incured by a joint venture on
interest-free cegistered capatal contributions made by
the Growp (ned of dividend recesved) 1,474,604 1,411,500
Less: Unrealised profit on disposal of land {(13,0:4) {13,044)
Less; Share of accumulated imputed interest expenses incurmed
by a joint venture on interest-iree registered capital
contributinons made by the Group [539,679) (598,959)
Less: Accumulated amortisation of additional cost of investments (1,7 58,000) (1,853,391}
3,705,298 3,943,511
Al amortised Cost
Registened capital contribution, at nominal amount 2,449,500 2,449,500
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition £2,020,784) (2,020,789)
Accumulated imputed interest income recognised by the Group 539,679 598,959
GHE, 3 1,027,670
4,673,688 4,971,183
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

15. Interests in Joint Venlures icontinued)

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures as at 31 December 2020 and 2021 are as follows:

Py
it Tt o Tkl Hrectem 2l iy
el Fah pu oo it <l et b right bkl
i of (i ey o e F ] Ay Pricil acily LF mn L) . ]
WERRALBANCE The M il i ) Wl fair it Oeslopeest, i N ippleshly Sl sppleakde E W
g eyt i il BT o
Sy ey Ll o rpr——
RERAARBAIEANLE Ther M B o) Rl e Ceslpnet opegom s £ W b
Cuanglng, Caangzie Tl (i Pl E ol gt ol
W e gy o i
vompara Limand
EENANREARRLT e PRI EMRMLNOD R OMRE Lk deyelopment L] " 1 1%
i Jurstiiy [vrigeet Pk s 1 il g isiom
Lagaty Lisnd

" For idenificalion purpose

Bath G5 IV and G Weat |V ane sino-foréign co-operative joint ventune enterprses istablished o invest
in toll expressways projects in the PRC.

The principal terms of this joint venture agreements entened into between the relovant subsidiaries and
the corresponding joint venture partnees under which the joint ventures operate ane as follows:

iy GS |V
G5 IV is established to undertake the development, operation and managemoent of the G
Superhighway, an expressway in Guangdaong Province of the PRC nunning between Shenzhen and
Guangehou, The operation periad is 300 visars from the ofiicial opening date 1 July 1997, At the
end of the operation period, all the immovable assets and facilitics of G5 1V will revert 1o the PRC
jrint venture pariner withou! compensation.

The Group's entitlement to the profit of the toll operations of G5 [V s 50% for the initial 10 years
of uperation penod, 48% for the next 10 years and 45% for the last 100 years of the operation
periodd,

The registered capital amounting to HKS702, 000,000 {equivalent o RMBAT 1 000,000) previously

injected by the Group to G5 1V had been repaid (o the Group by G5 1Y during the year ended 30
june 2008,
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15. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

i)y GF West )V
G Wiest |V is established to undertake the development, operation and management of GZ Wiest
Superhighway, an expressway linking Guangzhow, Zhongshan and Zhuhai and was built in three
phases,

Phase | of the GZ West Superhighway (“Phase | West")

The tatal imvestment for the Phase | West is RMB 1, 680,000,000, 35% of which was funded by the
registered capital of GZ West |V amounting to RMBESES, 000,000 which had been comributed by
the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in cqual share (i.e. cach to contribute
RMB294, 000.000). The operation period for Phase | West is 30 years commencing from 17
Sepltember 2003,

Phase |l of the GE Wesl Superhighway (“Phase 1l West”)

The tatal invesiment for Phase || West is RMBG, 715,000,000, 35% of which was funded by the
registered capital of GZ Waest W amounting to RMEB2,351,000,000 which had been contributed
by the Grouwp and the PRC joint venture partner in equal share (i.e. cach to contribute
RMBT, 175,500,000 The toll collection pesiod far Phase 1| West is 25 yiars commencing from 25
June 2000,

Phase 11l of the GZ West Superhighway (“Phase 11l West")

The tofal investment joe (he Phase 111 West ss RMES, 600, 000000, 35% of which was funded by
the registered capital of GE West |V amounting to RMB1,960,000,000 which had been
contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in equal share (e, each to contribule
RMBIS0,000,0000, The toll collection period for Phase (11 West is 25 years commiencing from 25
Jariary 200 3,

As at 31 Decomber 2020 and 2021, the fully paid registered capital of GZ West |V was
RAAB, B9, 000,000,

The Growp is enstitled o 50% of the distiibutable profits from operation of GZ West |V, A the end
of the respeciive operationftoll colleciion periods of Phase | West, Phase Il Wesi and Phase 11l
West, all the immovable assets and facilities of cach phase will be reverted fo relevant PRC
governmental authority which regulates transporation without compensation, The registered
capital contributions are requiced to be fepaid to both the Group and the PRC joinl venture
partner, The repayments ane requined to be approved by the Board of Directors of GZ West |V,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

15. Interests in Joint Venlures icontinued)

{iii) Xintang JV
Xintang IV is established to enpape in the development of residential project on the Xintang
Interchange.

On 10 September 2020, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of 22.5% enquity interest
of Xintang |V, tagether with the transfer of its rights in the corresponding portion of its
sharcholders” loans advanced to Xintang IV and the ootstanding interests accrued thereon,
through a public tender process in the PRC (the “Partial Disposal”). The Group held 15% equity
interest in the Xintang |V upon completion of the Partial Disposal,

A pain on Partial Qisposal of RMB545, 181,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2020, which was based on the consideration recetved from the Partial Disposal of
RMEBT,090,432,000 less corresponding portion of its shareholder’s loans advanced (o Xintang |V
and outstanding interests accroed thereson up to 17 September 2020 of RMES32,534, 0000 less
related fees of RMETD 717,000 and taking into consideration that the Growp®s 22.5% equity
imterest of Xintang IV on the completion date amounted o zeno.

As at 31 December 2020, the fully paid repistered capital of Xintang IV was RME] 0,000,000,
Dwring the year ended 31 December 2021, the fully paid regastered capital was increased from
RAE 0.000,000 to RMEBZ, 040,000,000 and the Group had capitalised an amouwnt due from a
joint venjuee of RMEBA54, 500,000 into capital contribution of the joimt venture on a daollar-do-
dullar lasis,

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group held 15% equity interest in the Xintang |V, The
Group is able to exercise joim control over Xintang [V which the decisions about the relevant
aclivities require the unanimous consent of the Group and the other shareholders, Accordingly,
Xintang IV is regarded as a joint venture of the Group.

Summarised financial informalion of joinl venlures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint ventures and reconciliation of the
summarised financial information 1o the carrying amount of the interests in the respective joint
ventures recopmised in the consolidated financial statements are sel oul below, The summarised
fimancial information below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures” financial statements
peepared in accordance with IFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o itfve year epuled 11 Decembey JO21

15. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures [continued)
In respect of the vears ended 31 Decombaer 20200 and 2021:

NN F.H |
Gif GV W Niemangg V' Tow Gi W GEfVied Nty IV Toal
RAAT B0 RARTG00 EMF0D RAE B AHE D0 AT ] [l
Weniacurrend aiseli
Propersy and equipment 5004 0,175 5 i FiAE] Ty
Lnomsion intaygbie ant ROORIXS . F1,005, 598 . SARLEL  MLETTRD a
Righl sol-in st - - - L% - B
Cithers. Wi TR = 1241
BSOS 11355AN AL AN WhILNeX 114021
Curnent aiset
Rank halsvees and cash 0006 185,50 Mk R o) 148807 A28 65T
lmversiory - = AW - = BARIE
Cithers. WS LEL- LALEL il 2 UHTEEY V17 JE5
| A0SRy nem 4 AR R TR 199851 STHLEET
seonarurrerd Babilies
Reurrtaring ohbgationy EE 1L R \150,0745 . LB ST (080,105
Feonacurresd £nasclal Babaditis
— [k and of hes foam 967N eiT A - ILTTRM2 TR W75
Balasces.of intmest: oe roghirred
rapital contritarion mads by
ol TR partrens = (19367 - = (55
Balances with joint veadure parinens [2A19.7R5) - -
D] income el A grerermest
by AI04EY (IR - [AREE K] [} &£H]
Ledse Eahitim. = E: 2 1420 3 £
thers 119819 13N (L oL} (%9100 |42 el -
(URYIAMG  (TINREN AT ILABLAT k1] K TS0
Currenl Falilifies
Curerat financial labiltio
— Rank Lo L] (84, T - LA E] R ]
— lnerest papable 11,145 b 128 = (R L] 15, 0k -
Balasces with joint vewsae purtners - - (I - = TS
Comidetation puryabde selabed 1a Lind
tevropmes] powct - = LI GO - -
Reorigl i advascr relaied 1o lasd
thearrprmiel e - - - - 1167 A5
Liewe Babiition. - - - (1,1 - [
Ohern. Al 5 it 1 (75:080) vkl b 11, A (T AT
112386570 LU E R | i1 7] @Al Gk RIS A52
Ht sniartn Lliabilisien of oo vt LI5LWE L (LB ] LUaEm  LETRAR 1T
Proapartinds i (he Cring's inditrol 5% " I 4% . 1%
Hmluﬁhmhﬁrh{ | 08§17 1,14, 777 Qene  1mran LA 191810 The, 16k 1 IRE TR
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Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

15. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information of joint venlures (continued)

] nar
G G2 et Untang I T GhJV G Y Wt Lintang i Tatal
KA T RAA 00 Lol feu] AL TG ExB Ut BT k0 LAlE
Mt aviety (Kabiltiey) covtsbatabie o
e Cooup 1,046 750 LEGS 167 draln  1Msm LIIREL L9k Mol A MM
Caprying amound of acdslnnal ro!
af mvramel TaTA52 e . TR BIZNT LY %1 - bk BE?
Shure oo et balsl s agalme vt
dur o a jiat vertu {Nede 19 4241 £an
Cannylmg st oo e Groop’s el
i jinl vertue 17784 LESE RN . 4,671 k8 1574074 19003 Bl HMe2l AT
Carying amoond of inerest in joini
weniaes b the Gooup's iotal avscts ™ 4, (- % by LY [HLH (59
Tull revene met ol vabor-wided £axi LI LOR) - LRk R [RLLECH -
Boyrsee from wle of [ty
(e o e acbiend ) - - - - - 1405
Comirsction prvros TR 1155 - - 1,7 -
Pitsl v il T - ILEAGASD LMD 114,015
s of s of properties - - - - - I
Caawilra o posdy (0 o (7,255 = = 112,730 =
et imcome aad other wsprsse k- DEE R A ] i EEES: ] [ 5315
Prindan il mesariaigg chang=y (AR5 7 0| - 11,8k (10T -
Toll exprrweway operation e [LLLE IR KR ] - (BT7.645  IWLTIN -
Cameral and admiristvalive expensey 96,5001 i, 50| LLiL (7 240 TRkl a1
Diepreciation and amortsation chagm (L 4B - (BT 548 WA (1 2]
Finnoe cows 128134 et 420 L] ALL ] 1200, 305
hmmuhﬂwmﬂll 1277 16 PR B3 Tl 13,617 [LELF K] i Fakll
Frofit du) fer the year [Note 1 AEATE N f1ag41m 1,855,000 SITET] [FUL RS
Preguetionn of the Camg's e FT WM [ L [N
Profll v dhased by dhe Copupy el A TR 406 18472 it Kt 1733 FLTIN R Ly
it of voseal bed Fed'ﬂ i
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i

i G5 IV disposaed of cetaln land with & carrying amdudng of RMBS, 950,000 to the koeal government at 2 botal consstetation
af RMB179.022,000 in Movernbes 2019, Subseguently, Xintang 1V won the bid for tbe Land use rights with the local
gowernimend 1o aciuire part of the aforesaid disposed Land ai g total comsideration of RAE 124,000,000 in Decemnbe
2019, Asat M December 2019, o sale and punchase agreement was eabered into by Xintang 1Y and the local government
while the land is handed ower in 2000, GS IV i reganded a5 disposed of cortain land with a carrying amaunt ol
FAELE G 1,000 1 NEntang |V, An inreabived prafit on dispoal of sech Land amousting to RMBIZG601,000 i elininaed in
the camsalidated fmancial stavements of the Gioup dering the vear endid 1) Decembsers 000, During the year ended 11
December 204 upon completion of the Parrdal Disgesal ol Xintarg |V, unmealised prafil amounting ho BAYETD 567,000 &
redisanid,

Uil Peodin for ihe year of G5 [V included exchange gain (net ol related inceme taxd of RMB19. 376,000 2020
RAEY 32,785,000,

128  Shenshen Investament Huihfings Ray Arvs Developamest Cosspuany § s sl

214/262



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow e pear conead 11 Depembaer SO

16. Equity Instrument at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
The Group holds the interest in unlisted limited company established in the PRC ("the investment”™),

which Directars have clected to designate the investment in equity instrument as al FYTOCT as they
believe that the invesiment is not held for frading and not expected to be sold in the foresecable future.

17. Property and Equipment

Furniture,
Muotaor fixtures amd
vehicles eqeripmeni Total

RME 0 EME QD0 REMB OO0
COST
As at 1 January 2020 1273 5276 B,54%
Additicns 758 g2 1,140
As at 31 December 2020 2,031 5,058 7,689
Additions - 544 544
Wrile-aff - (345) 345}
As al 31 December 2021 2,01 5,857 7 KA
DEPRECIATION
Asal 1 January 2020 152 4,621 50008
Charge for the year 356 219 575
As at 31 December 2020 T ] 4,840 5,578
Chareger for the year 406 481 847
Write-off - (345) (345)
Ag at 31 December 2021 1,144 4,976 B,120
CARRYING AMOUNTS
As at 31 Decembaer 2020 1293 B8 2111
As at 31 December 20217 BET i1 1,768

The above fiems of property and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5
vears from the date on which they became available for their intended use using the straight-ling
mrthod.
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Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

18. Right-of-Use Asset

Office premises
R B TMNT
As at 31 December 2021

Carrying amaun 4,999

For the year ended 31 December 2021
Depreciation ¢hange 147
2020 2027
REME DN RMB DR
Taral cash cutilow for leases 1751 2,558
Adlditions. 1o right-of-wee assed - 3,146

Thee Group leases office prsmises for its operations. Lease contracts ane onteried into for fised termoof 1
to 3 yiars (2020: 1 year). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different torms and conditions, In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applics the definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recagnised addition of righf-of-use assot and
beases liability amounting to RMEBS, 146,000 and RMBS, 146,000 respectively, and it made total cash
outilow for leases amounting to RME] 33,000,

Restrictions or covenants on leases
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes,

In addition, the Group regularly entened into short-term leases for car parks, office and staff quarters, of
which the Group applies the shor-term lease recognition exemption (o leases of such properties. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group incurred expense relating 1o short-term leases
amounfing (o BMB2,405,000 (2020; RME1, 791 000, As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the portiolio
of short-lerm legses is similar to the postiolio of shor-term leases o which the short-term lease expense
iisclosed above,
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19. Amount Due From a Joint Venture

At 31 December 2020, taking into account the sharing of losses from Xintang |V, the amount due from
a joint venture represented an amount due from Xintang 1V of BMB322,792,000 which is unseoured,
inferest hearing at 8% per annum and repayable in 2022 and 2003, Rased on the Group's confribution
plan over the investment in Xintang [V, the Dinectors consider the amount forms part of the Group’s
net imvestment in Xintang |V which accordingly constituted the interest in Xintang | for sharing losses
from Xintang IV,

In addition, an amount of EMB27,041, 000 is unsecured, interest bearing at 6%, per annum and
repayable in 2021, The Directors expect that the additional loan will bo recovered within the nest
twelve months from the reporting date based on the Group's contribution plan,

AL 31 December 2001, the Group changed the contribution plan to enter loan agreements with Xintang
¥ to conclude all amount due as unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per annum and repayalile within
one year, Accordingly, the whole amount due feam a joint venture of RMB263,636,000 s classificd as
current asset (2020 KMBI22,792,000 is classified as non-current asset and BMB27,041,000 is
classified as curent assetl for the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial

position,
Details of impairment assessment are sef out in Note 28,

20. Structured Deposit

AL 31 December 2021, the Group’s structured deposil represent (inancial products issued by a bank,
with maturity of 90 days on 24 February 2022 (2020: 30 days on 13 January 20213 and an expected
return ab 4% (2020: 281%) per annum. The investment in financial product is classafiod as Arangial
assets at FVTPL at initial recognition and measured at fair value at the ond of the reporting period, The
Directors consider the fair value of the financial products appraximate to the carrying amount as at 31
December 2020 and 2021 because of the shoart maturity.
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21. Bank Balances and Cash/Time Deposit With Original Maturity Over
Three Months

Ag at 31 December 2021, bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group and bank
balances which carried interest at market rates ranging from 0,01 % 1o 3.96% (2020; 0.01% o 2.9%)
[AEr AN,

At 31 December 2020, fime deposit with original maturity over throe months carried intenest at
prevailing market rate at 1.95% per annum,

Analysie of bank balances and cash and the time deposit with ariginal maturity over three months of
the Group by curmency:

2020 2021
RMB 000 RMB000
RME 754,902 1,546,621
HELD 4,131 5,698
United State dollars {"US07) 9 -
759,042 1,552,319
Dretails of impairment assessment are sef out in Note 28,
22, Share Capital
Number Naominal
of shares Aot
HES 0N}
Ordinary shares of HKS0.1 cach
Avuthorised:
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and 2021 10,000,000, 0400 1, 00K, B0
MNumber of shares Mominal amount
Equivalent (o
HE ST R R TN
lesuaed and fully paid:
Ag at 1 Janvary 2020, 31 December 2020
amgl 2021 3,081,690,283 308,169 270,603
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22, Share Capital icontinued)

Share option scheme

A share option scheme was approved for adoption by the sharcholders of the Company effoctive on 22
October 2003 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a poriod of ten years and the purpose of which s o provide the Company with an altermative means of
giving incentive to rewarding, remunerating. compensating andfor providing benefits (o (i) any
director, chicf executive or employos (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Growp; (i)
any discretionary object of a discretionary trust establishod by any director, chicl execulive or
employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Groop: (i) a company benedicially
awned by any director, chiel executive or emplovee iwhether full-time or part-time) of any member of
the Group; livl any consultant, professional and other adviser (o any member of the Group or any
consultant, professional and other adviser proposed to be appointed o any member of the Group
lincluding any of their employecs, pariners, direclors or executives); ivl any associates of any direcior,
Chiel executivie, or substantial shareholder of any member of the Group and for such other purposes as
the Board of Directors may approve from time (o lime, No share options ueder the Share Option
Scheme were granted, forfeited, vested, Tapsed of outstanding in the years presented,

Share award scheme

Cin 25 January 2007, an employoees” share awand scheme (the “Share Award Scheme®) was adopted by
the Company. The Share Award Scheme s valid and effective for a period of 15 vears commencing
from 23 lanuary 2007, The Share Award Scheme expired on 24 [anvary 2022, Pursuant to the ules of
the Share Award Scheme, the Company has set up a trust, HHI Emplovess” Share Award Scheme Trust,
for the purpose of adminisfering the Share Award Scheme and baolding the awarded shares before they
are vested, There were no awarded shares granted, forfeited, vested, lapsed or outstanding in the years
preseriled.
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23. Company's Statement of Financial Position

2020 2pz2r
REME (00 R 0
ASSETS
Mon-currenl Assels
Investments in subsidiaries 1,341,358 1,125,484
Armount due from a subsidiary 1,685,291 1,698,230
3,026,649 2,823,720
Current Assels
Deposits and prepayments 332 419
Interest receivables 215 Ha
Amounts due from subsidianes B75.412 1,498,851
Bank balances and cash 492 447 644,275
1,369,106 2,144,425
Tatal Assels 4,395,755 4,968,145
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reservis
Share capital 270,603 270,603
Share premium and reserves 2,795374 2,814,743
- i 3,065,977 3,085,346
Current Liabilities ml
Payables and accruals 2878 3,227
Dividend pavables 306,030 -
Amounts due o cubsidianies 1,020,870 1,879,572
Tolal Liabilities 1329778 1,682,709
Tolal Equity and Liabilities 4,395,755 4,968,145
Cash and cash equivalents 492,447 644,275
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23, Company’s Statement of Financial Position (continued)

Company’s Share Premium and Reserves

The Company's reserves available for distribution represant the share premium and retained profits,
Undher the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premmium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends (o shareholders subject 1o the provisions of its
Memiorandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution of a
dividend, the Company is alde to pay its deld as they fall due in the ordinary course of business, In
accortdance with the Company's Articles of Association, dividendds can only be distributed out of the
retained prodits and share premium of the Company, As ot 31 December 202 1, the Company’s reserves
availahle for distribution to its sharcholders amounting to BEMB3, 185,343,000 (2020
RMBI, 165,974,000), comprising retained profits of RMEBB47, 654,000 C1020: RMEBES2S, 2850000 and
share promivm of RMB2,3537, 689,000 (2020; RMB2, 337,689,000,

Share Tramslafion Retained

e reseErve profils Toatal
RAE D) RAMEB T RMEH00 RABO00
(Ml
Asal 1 fanuary 2020 2,337,689 (370, 600) 1,035,480 3,002, 56%
Prafit and total comprehensive
incame jor the vear - - 421,327 421,327
Dividends recogmised as distribution
during the vear (Note 13) - - (628,522} (h28.522)
As at 3 December 2020 2,337,689 (37 0,600) W28, 85 2,795,374
Profit and (otal comprehensive
incame for the year - - 587 375 587,375
Dividends recognised as distnbution
dunng the year (Note 13) - - {56, 006) (568,006}
Asat 31 December 2027 2,337,689 (370, 600) 547,654 2,814,743
Mole:

Before the change in functional curmency of the Company from HEKD to KB during the year ended 30 june 2000, (e exchange
differences recognbsed in translation reserve represented the dilference betwesn the eguity mamactions and scoumulasted
earmings framlated & the exchange rates at the transsction dates arsl the essets and Babil@ies tramlated ot the closing rages at
thie end ol esch reporting period.
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24. Lease Liability
2027
R PR T
Lease liability payable:
Within one year 1,674
Within a period of mare than ene year but not exceeding two vears 1,755
Within a period of more than two years but nol exceeding five years 1,580
5,004
Less: Amount due for settiement within one year ishown under current labilities) (1,674)
Amounts due for settlerment after one year 3,315

Mo extension options are included in any of the lease agreements entered by the Group, The weighted
averape incremental bormowing rate applied by the relevant group entity is 3.85% per annum (2020:
MN/AL The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are nof yet paid,
and the lease abligations are denominated in the currency that is same as the functional curmency of
the relovant proup ontity.

25.Bank Loans

2020 2027

RME (KD BB

Unsiscured (Mode! 1,078,349 1,936,275
The bank loans comprise:

Wariable rate loans 1,078,349 1,936,275

Mo As at 11 Decembor MO20 ardl 2021, thw bank loame are guasaniesd by the Comjiany

'F]ﬁ Shrnrhrn Investment Hihfings Ray Aces Dpvebapaeesd Cosapany s ed
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25. Bank Loans icontinued)

Included in bank loans are following amaunts denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the group entities which it relates:

L0 202
RME Q00 RME DR
HKD 1,076,349 1,936,275
2L . (3]
RMEB OO0 RME Q0D
The borrowings are repayahle as follows:
On demand ar within one year 324,347 882,353
Within a period of more than one vear bul nat
exceeding twd years . 63,360
Within a period of more than fwa vears but not
excoeding five yoars 754,002 988,562
1,078,349 1,936,275
Less: Amounts due for seftlement within one year
(showwn under current liabilitios) [324,347) (882,353)
Amaunts due for settflement after one vear 754,002 1,053,922

As at 31 December 2021, variable rate HED denominated bank loans carried interests ranging from
HIBOR plus (LB8% 1o HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2020: HIBOR plus 0.98% o HIBOR plus 1% per
annumj.

26, Deferred Tax Liabilities

The movemen of deforred tax liabilities is as follows:

Farr value
civange on Tav on
investmen!  wnelistribaied Tax on

A equily carmings of  dividends from
instrument  subsidtary and  a foind veniere

at FVTOET  joint ventures refnvesied [Nhers Tofal
RAE 00 RARE 000 RAR 00 R EME 0
Asat 1 Janiary JOI0 AL TH2 - A4 FULRE ]
(harge {credit] to profit ge lods - 21,321 - (4 20,857
Charge o other comprehensive income 840 - - - 40
Reeasee o peofit or loss upon payment
of withhadding tax - (2, 340) - - {26, 3400
As at 31 Decembser 2020 3,031 72,991 - - ThO25
Charge o profit or s - 64,952 - - b4,152
Crexdit to ather comprebensive inoome {1,090y - - - {1,080
Reclasfication - 1H,737] nTiv - -
Rebease fo profit or |oss upen payment
ol withholding tax - 19,141) - - (9,141
As ot 31 December 2021 1,942 9067 0,737 z 130,746
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27. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be abile to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group®s overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the prios years,

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes the borrowings and lease
labality disclosed in notes 25 and 24 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital, share premium, retained profits and
other reserves,

The Directars review the capital structure periodically, As part of this review, the Dircctors comsider
the cost of capital and the risks assoclated with each class of capiial. The Group will balance iis
overall capital structure through the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing delst,

The Directors monitor the ulilisation of bank loans and endunes full compliance with loan covenants
during Lhe year,

28. Financial Instruments

{a) Categories of financial instruments

2020 2027
RAE (KD R R
Financial assels
Financial assets at amortiser] cost 1,010,083 1,821,715
Eqpuity instrument at FyTOC) 37,000 20,100
Structurcd deposit at FYTPL 801,503 351,381
1,942,566 2,193,206
Fimancial liabilitics
Financial liabilities at amortised cosi 1,391,071 1,942,317

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Directors have overall responsibility foe the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework, The Group's risk management policies are established 1o identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, 10 s¢t approprate risk limits and conteols to monitor risks
and adherence 1o market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims o develop a disciplined and constructive
comtrol énviconment in which all employees understand their mles and obligations, The Directors
monitor and manage the financial risks relating 1o the operations of the Group o ensure
appropride measures are implemenied on a timely and eifective manner,

The Group employs o conservative stategy regarding its risk management and does not engage in
trading of any Hnancial instruments, including derdvative financial instruments, for hedging oF
speculative purpose,
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28. Financial Instruments (continued)

ih) Finmancial risk managemenl objectives and policies (continued)
There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures,

(i} Foreign currency risk
The Group undertake certain transactions denominmated in foreign currencies, hence
exposure o exchange fluctuation arise, Certain of the financial assets and financial liabilities
of the Group are denominated in HKD or USD which are currencies other than thiir
respective functional currencies of the respective group entitics, The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by constantly monitoring the movement of the foreign exchange rates.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liahilities of the Group at the end of the reparting period are as follows:

Assels Liabilitios
2020 2027 2020 2021
RNE N RA B0 RAE OO0 RMB Q00
LsD ] = = =
HK 413 3,098 1,388,508 1,940,612

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foneign
CUFTETICY ERpsune,

Sensitivily analysis

The foreign currency risk of the Group and a point venture is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of RMB, the functional currency of the Company, its subsidiaries and a joint
vendure as at 31 December 2021, against HKD and USD. The following sensitivity analysis
incluckess currency risk related to HED and USD denominated manctary items of respective
group enfities and the joint venture,

5% i= the sensitivity rate used when reporting forcign currency risk internally fo key
managemient personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monctary items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rate and all other variabdes ane held constant.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group iexcluding the joint ventures) had moanetary asseis and
monetary liabilites denominated in HKD and USEY that e not the functional currency of the
refovant group entitics (Lo, RMEL IF exchange rate of RMEB against HED and USD had been
stirenpthenediweakened by 5%, the peofit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
for the current year would decreasefincrease by RMB96, 746,000 (2020; RMBEG6S,219,000),
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28. Financial Instruments (continued)

ib) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
{i} Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, a joint venture of the Growp had outstanding bank loans and bank
balances donominated in HKD and LSO that are not the functional currency of a joint
venture (i, BMBL, The foreign corrency risk associated with foreign currency bormowi ngs
and bank balances exposed by a joint venture is reflected in the share of resulis of joint
ventures, If exchange rate of RMB against HKD and USD had been strengthenedfweakened
by 5%, the profit for the year attributable (o owners of the Company for the current year
would increase/decrease by RMBEL3, 608,000 (202 0: BMIE 359,600, 0040).

{ii] Interest rate risk
The cash flows interest rate risk of the Group relates primarily to variable rate bank loans
and bank batances with details a3 set out in notes 25 and 21 respectively and the variable
ratbe bank loans and bank balances of its joint veniures,

The Group is exposed (o faie value interest rsk in relation o certain bank balances (see note
210 and lease lability (see note 24), The management continues (o monitor the fair value
imberest rate exposure of the Growp.

A fundamental reform of major inferest rate benchmarks is being underaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank ofiered rates (IBORS") with alternative nearly
risk-free rates, Details of the impacts on the Group's risk management steategy arising from
ther interest rate benchmark reform are set out under “interest rate benchmark reform™ in this
i,

Sensilivily analyiis

The: sensitivity analysis includes only varable financial instruments outstanding af the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole period. A 100 basis points is the
sensitivity rate wsed when reporting interest rate risk infernally to key management personnel
and represents management s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates,

As al 31 December 2021, the Group lexcluding ils joint ventures) are exposed to cash flow
imlerest rate in relation fo the varable rate bank loans and bank balances, Ifinterest rafe had
Isegn 104 (2020: 104 basis points highoelower, the profit for the year aitributable to owners
of the Company for the current year would decreasedincrease by BME3, 840,000 (2020:
RMB5, 593, 0000,

As al 31 December 2021, the foint ventures of the Group are exposed to cash flow inferest
rate risk in relation to the variable rate bank balances and bank foans. I interest rate had
been 100 (2020: 100) basis points higher/lower, the profit for the year attributable to owners
af the Company for the current year would decrease/increase by RMB22 523,000 (2020:
RMB25, 500,004

T80 - Shrnshen lnvestement Huihfings Ray Arvs Developamest Cosspuany § s sl
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28. Financial Instruments (continued)

ih) Fimancial risk managemenl objectives and policies (continued)

(i} Credit risk and impairment assessmenl
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributalble fo its interest and other receivables, amount
due from a joint venture, time deposit with original maturity over three months and bank
balances,

At 31 December 2021, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will caose a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arizing fram the carrying amount of the respective financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position,

The Group has sigmificant concentration of credit risk in amount due from a joint venture.
The management is responsible to exercise the joint control on the relevant activities of the
joint venture with a PRC joint venture partner (o ensure the joint venture maintaining
favoralle financial position in ooder (o educe such credit risk,

In addition, the management and the respective joint ventures ane responsible Tor moniforing
the procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken te recover overdue debis, in order
1o minimize other credit risks. The management is also responsible for reviewing the
recoverable amount of cach individual debe af the end of the reporing period o ensure that
adequale impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts, In this regard, the Direciors
consicer that the Growp's credit risk is significantly reduced,

Thie credit risks af the Group on liguid funds are limited because the counlefpaiios ane
banks with good reputation.

For finarcial guaramtes contract, the aggregate amount of oulstanding financial guaranice
issued 1o a bank in respect of a bank facility granted 1o a joint venture that the Group could
be required io pay amounted to RMB22 5,000,000 as af 31 December 2021, RMBZ, 051,000
of the outstanding financial guarantees attributable to the Group's shareholding has been
wtilised by the joint venture, The fair value of the financial guarantee, as at the date of initial
recognition, was considered insignificant, At the end of the reporting period, the
manggement has pedormed impairment assessment, and concluded that there has been no
significant Increase in credit risk since infilal recognition of the financial guarantes confract,
Accordingly, the loss allowance for the financial guarantee contract sseed by the Group is
measured at an amount equal e T2-month ECL, No loss allowance was recognised in the
profit or loss.

Cither than the above, the Growp has no other significant concentration of credit risk.
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28. Financial Instruments icontinued)

ib) Financial risk management objectives and policies icontinued)
(i} Credit risk and impairmen assessment (continued)
The table below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment, for the low risk which i representing low risk of default and does
nod have any past-due amounis.

Ciross
Evternal Irternal  12-manth or carrying
credif rating  credif rating  lifetime ECL armount
G LR
As al 31 December 2020
Fimancial assets at
amortised cost
— Amouint due from
2 joint venture NIA Lonw risk 12-maonth ECL 349,833
— Bank balances and cash A+ N/A 1 2-month ECL 519,042

— Timmw= depasit with
origingl maturily over
three manths Al MNiA 12-month ECL 240,000

As at 31 December 2021
Fimancial assels at
armisrtised cost
— Amount due from
a joint venture MIA Low risk 12-month ECL 263,636

— Bank balances and cash At MN/A 12-month ECL 1,552,319

— Financial guarantec
contract {Mode) MIA Law risk 12-month ECL 225,000

moter Fie the fimancial guaranloe contract, the geoss carrying amount represents the maximum amount the Group
hiw guaraniesd under the comiract.

142 Shrararn lavestment Huihfings Ray Arvs Developamest Cosspuany § s sl
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28. Financial Instruments (continued)

ih) Fimancial risk managemenl objectives and policies (continued)
fivh Liguidity risk

The Group's treasury activities are centralised (o achiewe bettor rsk control and minimise
the cost of funds, Cazh is penerally placed in bank deposits mostly denominated in RAE.
The management aims to maintain a balance between continuity of adequate funding and
the flexibility through the wse of bank and other borrowings, The Group's ligquidity and
financing requirements are reviewed reguliarly o mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management will consider new. financing while maintaining appeopriale gearing
ratic,

The camying amounts of the financial liabilities represent the undiscounted cash fiows that
the Group is required to pay and are repayable on demand, Bank loans carried interests
ranging from HIBOR plus 0088% 10 HIBOR plus 1,5% (2020; HIBOR plus 0.98% o HIBOR
plus 196 per annum. All other fimancial liabilitics are non-inferest bearing,

The following table details the Group's femaining contractual maturity for its financial
linhilitics based on agreed payment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of fimancial liabifitics based on the carliest date on which the
Group can be required 1o pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows, To
the extent that interest Mlows are floating, the undiscounted amount is derived (rom curment
inferest rale af the end of the reporting penod,

Weighted Repayaie

dveape it g 1 jpwrar Teptal Tatal
elfective of iess than tiy - unhiscounied Cilrying
frleres! rate I year Syears  cash flows et
B RME TN RMEB 000 RMEB D08 RMBT00

A3 December 2020
Other payables 6,692 6,692 6,692
Divigdend payables - i, O3 - 6, 00k 30, D3N

Bank Inans:

— variable rate k| 333,913 74037 1,107,950 1,078,349

b, 635 T 0GT 1,420,672 1,351,071

Weighled Repayable

average ot diermand 1 year Total Total
effective or less than o undiscouniod carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 yoars cash flows amoent
T RME 00 RME' M RAE T RME 000

At 31 December 2021
Other payables - 6,052 - 6,032 6,052
Lesase liabatiny 385 1,838 1461 5,299 5,009

Bank Inans:

— variable rate .41 901,684 1.085,523 1,987 107 1,935,275
facl garanice - 25000 - @0 -

1,134,574 1, 0HH 984 2,223,558 1,947,336
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28. Financial Instruments (continued)

ib) Financial risk management objectives and policies icontinued)

{ivd Liguidity risk {continued)

The amount included above for financial guarantee contract is the maximum amount the
Group could be required to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations ai the
end of (he réporting period, (the management considers that it is moee likely than oot that no
amiunt will be payahle under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming under the guasantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which arc
guarameed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above tor variable interest rate instruments are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rabes differ 1o those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting pesiod

(v} Interest rate benchmark reform
As listed in note 25, the Group's HIBOR bank loans will be sulyject 1o the interest rate
benchmark reform, The Group is closely monitoring the market and managing the transition
to now henchmark interest rates, including announcements made by the relevant TBOR
repulalons.

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average (*HOMNIA™) has been identified as an
alternative to HIBOR, there is no plan to discontinee HIBOR. The multi-rate approach has
been adopted in Hong Kong, whoerehy HIBOR and HORMIA will co-exist,

For the floating rale loans that are linked (o HIBOR, the management expecis the HIBOR
will continue to maturity. Accordingly, the management does not expect there is significan
uncertainty or risks arising from the interest rate benchmark refoem.

{c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring
hasis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporing
perind. The following table gives information aboul how the fair values of these fimncial assets
are detesmined (in particular, the valuation technigque and inputs used’, as well as the fevel of the
iair value hierarchy info which the fair value measurements are categorised [levels 1 1o 3) based
an the degree 1o which the inpuis (o the fair value measurements is observable,

s  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from guoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities;

*  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Lovel 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie. as

pricesh or indirectly (Le. derived from prices); and

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include
impuits for the asset or lahility that are ni based on observable market data (unobservable

inmputsi,

Td8d - Shrnshen lnvestament Huihfings Ray Arvs Developamest Cosspuany § s sl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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28. Financial Instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets that are measured at fafe value on a recurring
basis (continued)

Eelationsbip of
anodsariabie
Fairwaloe Valuation fecknagor Signifirant it fo fair valee
Finarcisl ety ihl 0 hiearchy vl ey impuls unokseriahie fpaty (vale)
ity invtrusent Unlibedequity  Unlivied equity  Level 3 Market Apgsoach Price-t-eaimisge  The bigher the multiples,
it VIO Iimstrment Imrsiienl: sl of seveal  the leghes the Liir valee
RMBI] OMLOO0 RS20, 09,000 compatable oomgunie:
with average ai

T 2030: 188D

Enlemrse  The Begher the mubiples,

walue-o-rarmings befver  the highee e far valee
islemst, 12hes,
deperciation and
Imurisalion
\ENERSTOA®)
msltipies of sevenal
comparghle comganies
with morrage al
AL (2000 T.42)

Riski adlpremerd e Thee Bigher the Siscouni,
ailiscoont oo lack ol  The lower the fair valee

marketability at

I7% (PO My
Sructered depoait  RMBBO1 503000  RMBISLIBL000  Level Discounted  Poteriial peturm rateof - The higher the potential
cah flow 135 0400 meum rate, the bwer
000 T35% DA e fair vabie

e Ao

Mo 1l the prrice-fo-carnings muldtiples 1o thi: valuation model is 5% bighenlowes, while all ihe other variables were held
constant, te Lalr value would incwasetdecrcase by approsemaiely RMBI41,000 (2020, RMBE1E 000, H ihe ik
aljassment for & ifiscount on lack of marketability o the valuaikon madel i 5% higherlowes, while all the ogher
wariables were okl contanl, the fair value would decreasefinerease Iy .l[rprnil'mﬂk'lv FMART 2, DO (2020
RAART A2 000,

A sllght Incriase (n e pesteniial relaen e e inisolation seeuld result noa slight sbecieass n e lake value
measurement of (e structured deposit, and vice versa,

The fair values of financial assets and financial labilities at amortised costs are determined in
accordance with generally accepted prcing models based on discounted cash flow analysis,

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial |ibilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
wilues,

annial Reporr 2031 145
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fow thee year ended 31 December 2001

28. Financial Instruments icontinued)

{c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial assels that are measured at fair value on a reCurTing
hasis (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

Equity

instrument af Strociured

Fvract deposil

RAE ) BB TN

At January 2020 22,600 -

Tatal gains;

— in profit or joss - 1,503

— in other comprehensive income 7.560 -

Placement - BN OO0

Defered tax 840 -

Al 31 December 2020 31,000 RO1.503
Tatal gains (losses):

— in profit or loss = 6,947

— in other comprohensive income (9,810 -

Placement - 1,045,0:00

Withdrawal - (71,4495, 0040

Interest received - {7 069)

Dederred tax 11,090 -

Al 31 December 20217 20,100 51,3

Reguired for Level 3 recurring fair value measuremenls only

Of the total gains or Insses for the year included in profit or loss, RMB6,%947 000 gain (2020:
RME1,503,000 gainl relates to stroctured doposit beld at the end of the current reporting period.
Investment income from strecturcd depasit is incleded in ‘other income’.

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of RMB9.810.000 loss (2020:
RMBT 560,000 gain) relating to unlisted equity securities classified as equity instruments at

FVTOC! held at the end of the current reparting period and is reported as chanpes of investment
revaluation reserve.

14& Shrnrhrn Investment Hihfings Ray Aces Dpvebapaeesd Cosapany s ed
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29, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Oooooooa

The following list containzs the particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2020
and 2021 which principally affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group as the Directors ane of

the opinion that a full list of all the subsidiaries would be of excessive length.

Hce of verperanm’ Antvibartable gty mteresd Fropontion sf rodng peerr
e o dahndan eilaldlalemeat eurd sl flly pud ihaee Helif by e Commpary Beld b the Campany Prissipaal stivify
NN i B xar an N
Kimgrice ) L™ riinhrga iy Ondiwry shars  Ovsfinany harm i i 5% Wi%  iveimest
A5 00 3410 48 felbing
Hevewnd] Cira Developrest  Hiong Kong Dufiury showes  Divairuary shaien N s L hi LA ]
thuperiiptery) Livind™ HES! Fukl [T ol inard PR
hary sty Seruatig gy iy et
deetred ihars  deferond b s dan
s Hal
Henewnl] CoungrhomThahul  Hinng Kang Oaeliary thomes  Diesirary shaien m L T, Wl i in
Sgwrhigtrasy Developrent s HIR i el ol inand L
Liwitml Woniciing  henisling b erdny et
determnd thaos  dbeienond 1haim ey sharm
HIEE! HLsd
5 By M Fiounwe Liwiied Hamg g Oedecryshum  Drefinary thare L) L T, [ T
L] L]
Fwrrean fay dora Ittty The PRC Oedruryshum  Ordinary shie i it % W% e
(Shercher Doy Limitne® EMATAAN TN EELATLI AT hedng

Except S1H Bay Area Finance Limated, all the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company,

Mo of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities 21 the end of the year,

L Mo fnsncial indoemation af ibe mm—wl\lﬂl:\- el subisldlas s b ellaeloeed bn oihe consollidaiod Aimanceal siagieme s o P
m1r|.-:'nr|.1m]lmgln&w¢sh are pist material 1o the Group

30. Capital Commitmenils

Asat 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group has no outstanding capital commitment,

233/262
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31. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, including
bath cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flenws were, or fulure cash fows will be, classified in the Group's consalidated statermeni of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activitios.

Barik Lease  Dividends Interest
fovans fiabilities payables payable Total
RAE000 KMBD00 HATE AR RALE TN KA TN
As at 1 January 2020 280,969 - - 157 281,126
Flnanting cash flows B72,7 ] mane - (323, 266) (15,575) 533,273
Divedends declared - - 634,078 - 634,078
Inferest expense - - - 15,791 15,791
Exchange difference (748,734} = (4,782} (20 (79,536)
Agat 31 December 2020 1LO7H,349 - 306,030 153 1,184,732
MNow lease entened - 5,146 - - 5,146
Financing cash flows B, 52 Jiuee [153]) (B78,879) (20,239} (8,748
Dhvidends dectared - - 578,363 - 578,363
Infeerest cupense - 16 - 20,550 20,566
Exchange difference (32,597} - 15,514} 17 {38, 728)
Acal 31 December 2021 1,936,275 5,000 - 647 1,941.911

Mordes The fmancirg cash floves of ank loams incloding new bank keans raised of RAME2 465,686, D00 Q2020 RMBIT5H, 168, 0)
anid bank Inans repaid of BvE]STS, 163000 (020: RMEZ S 18,054 0000 durng the year.

32. Major Non-Cash Transactions
{ak  Dwring the year ended as at 31 December 2021, the Group entered into a leasing armangement for
the use of asset and recognised right-of-use asset and lease Liability of RMBS, 146,000 and
RMBS, 146,000 respectively at the inception of the lease,

(b} During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had capitalised an amount due from a joing
venture of RAMBEA 54,500,000 capital contribution of the joint venture on a doliar-to-dallar basis

33. Related Party Transactions

Other than as discloted elsowhere in these consolidated Hnancial statements, during the vear ended 31
December 2021, the Group cntitled o receive interest income from a joint venture o BMEB3IS, 985,000
[2020:RMB49,537,000).

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel who are all Directors is disclosed in sote 11,

T48  Shrnshen lnvestament Huihfings Ray Arvs Developamest Cosspuany § s sl
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34, Guarantee

As at 31 December 2021, the banking facilities of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
amounting (o RMBE3, 737,180,000 (2020: RMB5,956,394.0000 were guaranteed by the Company. The
Company is able to contral the utilisation of the facilities,

During the year, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has provided a corporate guarantes
13 & Bank o secure a banking facility pranted (o 8 joint venture amounting to RMB225,000,000. AL 31

December 2021, the amount wtilised by the joint venture was RMBZ.051,000, In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee is insignificant,

35. Approval of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 149 were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 Febrary 2022,

annial Reporr 2031 149
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area
Development Company Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
"the Group") set out on pages 87 to 149, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financia position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("1FRSs") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Codge"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share
of results of JVs - Amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs

We identified the amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs as a key audit
matter because significant judgements are
required in determining the estimation of
future traffic volume which has an impact on
the carrying value of the concession
intangible assets of the Vs as at year end and
the amortisation charges for the current and
future years. Asset out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, the two
JVs of the Group are engaged in the
development, operation and management of
expressways under service concession
agreements with the right to collect tolls for
operating two expressways in Guangdong
Province of the People's Republic of China
(the "PRC"), one of which runs between
Shenzhen and Guangzhou and the other one
links Guangzhou, Zhongshan and Zhuhai
with the toll collection periods ranging from
25 yearsto 30 years. The Group has
accounted for itsinterestsin these Vs using
the equity method of accounting.

oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the amortisation
of concession intangible assets of the Vs
included:

256/262

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policy adopted and
whether such accounting policy
adopted reflects the consumption
pattern of the concession intangible
assets and benchmarking with other
companies in the same industry;

Undertaking a detailed analysis on the
significant judgements and estimates
used in management's estimation as
mentioned below; and

Comparing the expected traffic
volume estimated by the management
in the past against the actual traffic
volume in previous years and the
historical trend of traffic volume, and
then obtaining reasons for any
variances, as well as evaluating the
appropriateness, key basis and
assumptions, including the annual
growth rate of the traffic volume, the
change of the transportation network
of the region and government policies
relating to the toll expressway
operation in the PRC.
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Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share
of results of JVs - Amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs - continued

As set out in note 4(i) to the consolidated
financial statements, the interestsin JVsasat
31 December 2021 amounted to
RMB4,971,183,000 and the share of results
of JVsfor the year then ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB656,758,000.
Included in the share of results of JVs, there
was an amortisation of concession intangible
assets of the JV's shared by the Group
amounting to RMB639,763,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021 which was
calculated based on units-of-usage basis, i.e.
the ratio of actual traffic volume of the
underlying toll expressways for a particular
period over thetotal expected traffic volume
of the underlying toll expressways over the
remaining concession period of the service
CoNcession agreements.

The total expected traffic volume over the
remaining concession period was estimated
by the management with reference to areport
prepared by athird party traffic consultant in
aprior year taken into consideration of
various factors such as the annual growth
rate of the traffic volume, the actual traffic
volume in the recent periods, the change of
the transportation network of the region and
government policies relating to the toll
expressway operation in the PRC.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share
of results of JVs - Resurfacing obligations of
the JVs

We identified the resurfacing obligations of
the JVs as a key audit matter due to the
management's judgement involved in
determining the amount of provision by
discounted cash flow method which is based
on the number of major resurfacing works to
be undertaken over the concession periods
under the service concession agreements and
the expected costs to be incurred for each
event and then discounted to the present
value based on a pre-tax discount rate which
could in turn affect the carrying amount of
interestsin JVs as at 31 December 2021 and
share of results of JVsfor the year ended

31 December 2021 under the equity method
of accounting for the reason stated in the
above key audit matter.

As disclosed in note 4(ii) to the consolidated
financia statements, the JVs of the Group
have contractual obligations under the
contractual service concession arrangements
to maintain the toll expressways to a
specified level of serviceability over the
respective concession periods. These
obligations to maintain or restore the toll
expressways, except for upgrade services, are
to be recognised as resurfacing obligations in
the financia statements of the JV's.

oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to evaluate the
resurfacing obligations of the JV'sincluded:
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Evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology, key basis and
assumptions made by management in
estimating the obligations;

Assessing the reasonabl eness of the
expected costs of the resurfacing
works and the number of major
resurfacing works to be undertaken
over the remaining concession period
based on the technical report prepared
by the engineering department of the
JVsand the actual costsincurred for
resurfacing works in recent periods,

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
discount rate and the timing for
discounting used by the management
with reference to the borrowing rate
of the Vs, and
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Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share
of results of JVs - Resurfacing obligations of
the JVs - continued

Asfurther disclosed in note 4(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, the
interestsin JVsas at 31 December 2021
amounted to RMB4,971,183,000 and share of
results of JVsfor the year then ended

31 December 2021 amounted to
RMB656,758,000. Included in the interests
in JV's, there was a provision of resurfacing
obligations of the JVs shared by the Group
amounting to RMB276,056,000 as at

31 December 2021.

The expected costs for maintenance and
resurfacing and the timing of such event to
take place involve estimates made by the
management of the Group, which were taken
into consideration of the resurfacing plans of
the JVs, historical costs incurred for similar
activities and the latest quotations from the
service provider. These expected costs were
then discounted to the present value based on
adiscount rate determined by the
management of the Group that reflected the
time value of the money and the risk specific
to the obligation.

oOoOooodn

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Evaluating the projected traffic
volume projection based on
procedures performed in the key audit
matter related to the amortisation on
concession intangible assets of the
JVs as mentioned above which is
used for determining the amount of
resurfacing expense to be charged to
profit or loss in the respective
reporting period.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financia statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determineis
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as abody, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of thisreport. Reasonable assurance isahigh
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HK SAs will
always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis
for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as agoing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuresin the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financia statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Leung Chui
Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 February 2022
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